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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBEREERE
For the year ended
31 December
BZE+-—A=+—HLFE
2008 2007
Key Financial Indicators T EHBIEE —ZE)\F —TTLF
Turnover (HK$' million) gEHE (B8AT) 5,289.3 3,853.6
Gross profit (HK$' million) EH (B8AT) 2,787.4 1,829.8
Operating profit (HK$' million) LEAN (BEET) 679.0 541.1
Profit attributable to equity holders RAPERFFE AL ER
of the Company (HK$' million) (BBFEL) 492.9 384.4
Basic and diluted earnings per share BIREARREERT
(HK cents) (B 30.09 23.47
Dividend per share (HK cents) FRERE (B 5.5 5.0
For the year ended
31 December
BZE+t-A=1+—RHItEE
2008 2007
Key Financial Indicators TEHBIEE —EEN\F —ETTF
Average inventory turnover (days) (Note 1) FHFEEEE () (1) 171 151
Average debtors turnover (days) (Note 2) YIRS EEE (B) (FfEE2) 11 13
Average creditors turnover (days) (Note 3) YA ERFEEE (B) (MEE3) 61 71
Capital expenditure (HK$' million) EARYT (B8EET) 234.3 189.0
Effective tax rate (%) BEEFRE (%) 25.4 26.7
As at 31 December
R+=A=t+—H
2008 2007
Key Financial Indicators T EH KR —ZE)\F —ZELEF
Cash and cash equivalents (HK$' million) RekReEEYN (BEET) 148.0 181.7
Bank loans (HK$’ million) IRITER (BEET) 270.7 195.0
Equity attributable to equity holders RARERFTA ARBEER
of the Company (HK$' million) (B8ET) 1,854.5 1,373.1
Current ratio (times) (Note 4) BERBLE (F) (HiE4) 2.04 1.71
Gearing ratio (%) (Note 5) BEYERTE ABGERILE (%) ([35E5) 14.6 14.2
Notes: MsE -
1. The calculation of average inventory turnover (days) is based on the average of 1. THEFEEEEH(H) NIZEVRELEFE 2 FHE#$K I
35e3ngggd:;g closing inventory balances divided by cost of sales and multiplied PHERRATRLAZ65 RAEHE o

2. The calculation of average debtors turnover (days) is based on the average 2. FEWEZCAEA(R) NIREVRELR Y E S EKEZ
of opening and closing balances of trade receivables divided by turnover and I HERRIR DA S S FEIRIA365 KA E ©
multiplied by 365 days.

3. The calculation of average creditors turnover (days) is based on the average 3. FHREMNEFRESH(B)NIRFVIMERZESERMHER
of opening and closing balances of trade payables divided by purchases and T ERRPR AR BB FE IR IA365 KA E ©
multiplied by 365 days.

4. The calculation of current ratio (times) is based on the total current assets divided 4, BERBLREBE)IMEEAtT —_A=1t—HBZRBEELE
by total current liabilities as at 31 December. WRIARE B ERFAEH -

5. The calculation of gearing ratio (%) is based on the total bank loans divided by 5. & &%z E AFEIGEZ LR (%) RERT_A=+—
equity attributable to equity holders of the Company as at 31 December. A2 SRITIE BB AR D RS 58 ATE L HERSETE -

SHOEEOXHE " 5
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
MEREERE

ERBERN
BE+_A=1+—HItFE

82%

Turnover Contribution Analysis
For the year ended 31 December

88%

Brand business

A & SE 75

Brand business

RS

REBNERD T
BE+—_A=1+—HIFE

Operating Profit Contribution Analysis
For the year ended 31 December

Brand business

iR

Brand business

m R

97% 93%

90%

2008

Licensed Brands OEM Business

. Own Brand — Daphne Own Brand — Shoebox

BE M - ERE BEmE - E1E RIB@AE RS T
ANALYSIS OF SEGMENT TURNOVER AND RESULTS
DR EEEREEDN
Brand business
R ST OEM business
Daphne Shoebox Sportswear EREREER
EXE ENE EE R
(HK$" million) (H&ET) 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Turnover 0 3,626.0 2,562.2 617.0 299.6 399.4 284.1 642.4 707.7
Gross profit EH 2,172.4 1,426.5 351.9 160.4 176.7 127.2 83.3 115.7
Operating profit ERF 632.3 4415 52.3 14.1 3.3 26.3 20.0 38.1
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Own Brands

Licensed Brands

BAEmE I a2
Daphne Shoebox | Sportswear Footwear Total
Region ith & EXE ENE EE R EIpRESE BE
Eastern China ERIER 1,068 251 49 9 1,377

Southern China

Northeastern China

Northern China =L@ 249 49 28 2 328
Southwestern China Ficpeapil = 178 30 6 - 214

Taiwan
Total

Distribution of Points-of-Sale by City Tier (As at 37 December 2008)
B RBIE D 2 SHER 2O HIER R—FT/N\F+=-F=+—A)

Brand Tier 1| Tier 2| Tier 3| Tier 4| Tier 5| Tier 6 Total
ey F—W| EFoR| BER| BER| BRE| EAR 5T
Own Brands BAME Daphne* EZEiE* 322 582 393 556 465 477 | 2,795

Shoebox /& 86 141 108 134 118 29 616
Licensed Brands RIEFHEE  Sportswear EB) R 22 57 33 20 27 7 166

Footwear BIBREELE 6 5 = = = = 1
Total waEt 436 785 534 710 610 513 3,588

*  Excluding Daphne’s Points-of-Sale in Taiwan

* TEBEERERGEZHER
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

RESULTS

Fiscal year 2008 was a challenging year. The PRC was hit with several
natural disasters and the outbreak of the economic turmoil in the second
half of the year, which adversely impacted the general consumer spending
sentiment. Against this macro backdrop, Daphne International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) continued
to deliver satisfactory overall results for the year. Brand business was
still the largest revenue contributor to the Group. To strengthen the
corporate brand image, the Company changed its name from Prime
Success International Group Limited to Daphne International Holdings
Limited in June 2008.

STABLE GROWTH OF BRAND BUSINESS

Building brand business continued to be one of the key strategic focuses
of the Group. Although experiencing an apparent slowdown of growth
after the outbreak of the financial crisis in the second half of 2008,
the Group was able to leverage on the established brand reputation
and reported stable growth in both turnover and profit for fiscal year
2008.

The “Daphne” brand, comprising two product series “Daphne Young—D18"
and “Daphne Classics — D28", contributed considerably to the Group’s
total turnover and profit. The name “Daphne” is a well-recognised ladies
footwear brand throughout Mainland China. The Group was focused on
further enhancing the brand awareness of “Daphne” through effective
marketing and promotion strategies carried out during the year.
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"Shoebox”, a brand developed by the Group to capture the mass market,
continued to gain popularity among consumers. Although this brand
currently contributes a relatively small portion of the Group’s turnover
and profit, the Group believes that “Shoebox” has ample potential to
generate attractive returns to the Group in the future. The Group will
keep expanding this brand in the coming years.

The growth of the sportswear market in 2008 was lower than expected in
spite of the Beijing 2008 Olympic Games. The Group's sportswear business
including “adidas” and “Nike"” reported a decline in profit during the
year due to fierce competition in the market. Operating the sportswear
business, nevertheless, has given the Group’s opportunity of business
diversification and gained solid experience in retail marketing.

DIMINISHING SHARE OF ORIGINAL EQUIPMENT
MANUFACTURING (OEM) BUSINESS

Our OEM business was affected during the year by the deterioration of US
consumption, rising production costs and sluggish export markets. While
we do not expect market conditions to improve in the near future, we will
operate the OEM business with caution and will allocate manufacturing
resources to produce own brand products for the domestic market so
as to maximise overall productivity as well as profitability.

OUTLOOK

We expect that the macro environment will continue to be challenging
in 2009. Despite the economic downturn, the Group will continue to
strategically expand its distribution network to support its own brand
business including “Daphne” and “Shoebox”. As for the mid-to-high-
end market segment, competition is intensifying due to the economic
downturn. The Group will optimise its resources to cautiously develop
the business with newly-introduced international brands that can further
enhance our growth.

Looking ahead, we will inject more resources into “Daphne”, “Shoebox”,
“Sofft” and “Born” to boost profitability and extend business coverage
geographically. We will effectively allocate resources to different brands
and will continue to work hard to identify and overcome the obstacles
as we execute our growth strategy and build our position as one of the
market leaders in the ladies footwear business.

| am optimistic about the prospects of the Group and looking forward
to bringing fruitful returns to all shareholders in the future.

Chen Ying-Chieh
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 April 2009
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN WD

BUSINESS REVIEW

Brand Business

Brand business is the primary source of profitability for the Group. For
the year under review, the business continued to demonstrate stable
growth. The Group’s prime focus “Daphne”, which enjoys a strong
reputation across Mainland China, continued to deliver solid growth. The
performance of “Shoebox” was satisfactory due to strong mass market
“adidas”,

were below expected during the year due to fierce competition. Other

demand while the results of the licensed sportswear brand,

newly-licensed brands, “Sofft” and “Born”, “Arezzo"” and “Nike” though
incurred a loss during the initial stage in 2008 are gaining the Mainland
market acceptance.

Own Brands

“Daphne”

“Daphne” has been the major profit contributor to the Group. 475
points-of-sale were added during the review year to boost presence of
the brand across the Mainland and Taiwan. As at 31 December 2008,
Daphne had 1,815 stores, 616 counters and 418 franchised outlets. The
number of “Daphne” points-of-sale is summarised as follows:

E 3 E)

R hEE 3 7%

mEEB D AEERBMIZRN T EZRR - REESF

N WEBEESRSRENER - AEENEH S

MIEXE IRE2FEERARLD - LHEESRSRR

MR - ARARTISHERERY) - [EEINKRFS
AME - REEHER) IREHan 2 [ adidas | R IR BIE 3

FHRMBR AL - Em%ﬁﬁfﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁé‘? * [Sofft] &

[Born] - fArezzoJ&(leeJ RZET )N\ FHRIE
FREEMEEER  BEEEHNESTREAEMEN
B% -

BEmE

[EZEZE ]

[EXREIRREENTZRNIR - AEBEREE
FRIBRTA7SEBER  BRPERERGE - 1
“EENF+A=+—8 [EXEIHEF1815H
JEH - 616MEFERASEMBTER o [ R IH

EHBEREWT

As at 31 December

Rt+t=A=+—H

2008 2007 Change
—EENF ZTTF e

Directly-managed stores B IZEAEE [
-D18 -D18 347 347 -
- D28 - D28 1,331 1,126 +205
-D18 & D28 - D18} D28 137 104 +33
1,815 1,577 +238

Directly-managed counters H &L HE
-D18 -D18 115 100 +15
- D28 - D28 441 379 +62
-D18 & D28 - D18} D28 60 39 +21
616 518 +98
Franchised outlets IMETER 418 279 +139
Total B 2,849 2,374 +475

In Taiwan, the Group seeks to fine tune its strategies to cope with the
ever-changing market conditions, while aiming at further cautiously
expanding locally in order to enjoy economies of scale in the near

future.

REE  AREITEREE M ISRE S MH R
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Leveraging the popularity of their respective famed spokespersons,
S.H.E and Ms Rene Liu, “Daphne-D18"” and “Daphne-D28" reinforced
their brand images. Apart from celebrity endorsement, by mounting
creative promotional activities including sponsoring special events and
TV programmes, the Group also boosted public awareness of the brand
in Mainland China.

“Shoebox”

During the year under review, the brand gained wider reputation, while
the economic downturn created further opportunities for “Shoebox” that
targets the mass market for the demand of good quality but lower-priced
footwear. The brand reported more than double in both turnover and
operating profit compared with last year. The Group added 270 new
stores for the brand during the year, bringing the total to 616.

Licensed Brands

Sportswear

In the first half of the year, bolstered by the advent of the Beijing
Olympics, the sportswear brands “adidas” and “Nike” brought in stable
revenues for the Group, but the business at large did not perform as
well as expected. Keen competition from other international and local
brands, together with the financial crisis in the second half year, the
segment profit reported an overall decline for the year. Owing to the poor
market sentiment and fierce market competition in sportswear market,
the Group has been strategically revisiting the development plan of the
sportswear business by focusing resources on ladies footwear business.
As at 31 December 2008, the Group operated 138 adidias outlets and
28 Nike outlets.

International Footwear

During the year under review, the Group was granted exclusive distribution
rights for two international footwear brands, namely “Sofft”/“Born”
and “Arezzo"”, in Mainland China. The Group seeks to further enhance
the brand awareness of these two mid-to-high-end ladies brands. As a
whole, the two international brands have strengthened their foothold in
the high-quality ladies footwear market in Mainland China. The Group
operated 6 “Sofft” and 5 “Arezzo” points-of-sale at the end of 2008.

SHOEBOXE@

3R Annual Report 2008

BHEARLFHEASHERBIE R/ NED RIEERE
REAMBEBXEL  [ZXYJe-D18] K[ ZX1e-D28)
MM RGIAE — N8 - BRBFERAEERE
REAN AEETEBRRENEEEHNED
FRIER REREA - B REETBERENSL
e

[E1E ]

REBRFA thRENEERRE MEETEER
HHARTEHELCEERERT KN ERIFTK
FEEM - REcEXBREERBNEEFEL
B HBEEE—EER ARERFRER T 270/
¥E - SRR NEG16M/ -

RE R

EERE

R EFF L REES SRR L ED R mE
ladidas | [ Nike | R AR EHRBEMA - AMULE
BR|ABORMIAHIEE - X B REEE M
ERMS EHEFHR - METHFHESRBHK
ZEMBEBNEFRNTY® - HRRENTIZR
ANHUMESRH TS HF - AEEREHME
BYREEBNERTE  UETFERERETX
HEXBK -R_TEN\FE+-_A=1+—0 A5EHK
#&2138fEl adidas | 522818 Nike J$HEEF,

IR

REEEFR - AN EEES M8 B B R R Sofft ],
[Born] K[ Arezzo ] P Bl K FEMBE R H i #E - &
SEBE S NREMETSELEREHNSA
B BEms  WMEBRRREEKNEREEF
BAEBEZEMENEY - RZTTNFE - K
S8 4 6 1Al Sofft ] RS {E Arezzo J§HE R, -

"1




- Daphne International Holdings Limited | Z X e Bl R = R B R 2 &

Annual Report 2008 4}

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEETWE T

OEM Business

A slow export market and rising raw material and production costs
affected the Group’s OEM business, which saw a drop in turnover against
last year. The segment accounted for 12% (2007: 18%) of the Group’s
total turnover. The Group intends to trim the share of OEM business in
its overall operation so as to minimise the negative impact of the slack
business on its overall results. In spite of the tough global economic
environment, the Group still managed to make its OEM export business
profitable in 2008 as a result of the cost control measures and efficient
capacity utilisation.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results Performance

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group’s turnover grew
by 37% to HK$5,289.3 million (2007: HK$3,853.6 million) and profit
attributable to shareholders climbed by 28% to HK$492.9 million (2007:
HK$384.4 million). Basic earnings per share of the Group was HK30.09
cents (2007: HK23.47 cents). The Board recommended the payment of
a final dividend of HK3.0 cents (2007: HK2.5 cents) per share for the
year ended 31 December 2008.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, turnover of the brand business
surged by 48% to HK$4,646.9 million (2007: HK$3,145.8 million.)
Sales from “Daphne”, “Shoebox”, licensed brands and OEM business
accounted for 69%, 12%, 7% and 12% (2007: 67%, 8%, 7% and
18%) respectively of the Group’s total turnover.

The Group managed to increase the operating profit of its brand business
by 42% to HK$682.9 million (2007: HK$481.9 million). The segment
registered a gross margin and an operating margin of 58% and 15%
(2007: 54% and 15%) respectively.

With export to the US market down and costs up, turnover of the OEM
business decreased by 9% to HK$642.4 million (2007: HK$707.7 million)
and segment profit was also down by 48%, to HK$20.0 million (2007:
HK$38.1 million). The gross margin and operating margin of the segment
were 13% and 3% (2007: 16% and 5%) respectively.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents fell 19%
to HK$148.0 million from HK$181.7 million as at 31 December 2007.
The net decrease of HK$33.7 million is analysed as follows:

3R Annual Report 2008

REES KT HER
RZZEZENF+ZA=+—H AEENRES KR
SEEYH_TELF+-_A=1+—H®NI81.7TAEE
BTN K19% 214808 88T FRAA33.788
BT HOWmT ¢

HK$million

BEBT

Net cash generated from operating activities KEEBEENRSFE 173.2
Capital expenditure BEARMRY (234.3)
Net dividend paid FRR B (85.6)
Net interest paid SERFLE (10.1)
Net bank loans raised FIRITER 73.5
Proceeds from disposal of land use rights and fixed assets - {8 AR X B E B 2 WK 10.3
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary & — BT B A R 25.0

Others
Effect of exchange rate changes

Hith 0.5
SNE R IR KRG E) 2 R

13.8

(33.7)

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had unutilised banking facilities
amounting to HK$182.3 million (2007: HK$257.2 million) and current
ratio improved from 1.71 as at 31 December 2007 to 2.04 as at 31
December 2008. The Group has adequate resources currently to support

expansion and development of business in the coming year.

The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated on the basis of bank loans
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi, the US dollar and New
Taiwan dollar totaling HK$270.7 million (2007: HK$195.0 million) over
shareholders’ equity of HK$1,854.4 million (2007: HK$1,373.1 million),
was 14.6% (2007: 14.2%) as at 31 December 2008. All bank loans were
at floating rates during the year under review.

Foreign exchange risk management

The Group's monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi, US dollar, Euro and New
Taiwan dollar. The management believes the Group’s working capital is
not exposed to any significant foreign exchange risk. Foreign exchange
risk arising from transactions denominated in foreign currencies are
managed whenever necessary by the Group, using foreign exchange
forward contracts with major and reputable financial institutions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEETWE T

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had short-term bank loans of
HK$92.5 million (2007: HK$68.8 million) secured by certain leasehold
buildings of a total net book value of HK$32.5 million (2007: land use
rights and leasehold buildings of HK$23.7 million) and an available-for-
sale financial assets with nil (2007: nil) carrying value.

Significant Capital Investments

During the year, the Group incurred a capital expenditure of HK$234.3
million (2007: HK$189.0 million) mainly for retail network expansion,
construction of office buildings and logistics centres and related
equipment.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2008, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had over 21,000 (2007: 24,000)
employees in Hong Kong, Taiwan and China. Employee expenditure
for the year under review amounted to HK$614.0 million (2007:
HK$466.6 million). The Group values human resources and recognises
the importance of retaining high calibre employees. Remuneration
packages are generally structured by reference to market terms and
the qualifications of individual employees. In addition, share options
and discretionary bonuses are granted to eligible employees based on
the Group’s and an employee’s performance. The Group also provides
mandatory provident fund schemes, medical insurance schemes, staff
purchase discounts and training programmes to employees.

PROSPECTS

The Group plans to continue to expand its points-of-sale network and
boost economies of scale. In the coming year, the Group aims to open
approximately 350 “Daphne” points-of-sale and 250 “Shoebox” points-
of-sale, thus reinforce the positioning of its core brand business. The
Group will also focus on growing the “Shoebox” operation and realise
its vast potential. Meanwhile, the Group will expand the business in
lower-tier cities and selectively in higher-tier cities to increase revenues
and penetration.

To maintain profitability, the Group will be strategically focusing more
resources on its ladies footwear business to grow “Daphne”, “Shoebox”,
"Sofft” and “Born”. The Group will also be open to potential business
opportunities to maintain sustainable growth in the medium to long

run.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Chen Ying-Chieh, aged 40, is the Chairman of the Group. Mr
Chen is responsible for the overall corporate planning with focus on
brand business of the Group. Mr Chen obtained a bachelor’s degree in
International Trade Business from the University of Zhengyou. He has
been working with the Group since 1992. Mr Chen is a nephew of Mr
Chen Hsien Min and a cousin of Mr Chang Chih-Kai.

Mr Chen Hsien Min, aged 58, is the Managing Director and one of the
founders of the Group. Mr Chen is responsible for the overall corporate
planning and day-to-day operations of the Group, including production,
marketing and sales activities. Mr Chen has a bachelor’s degree in Land
Economics from the National Cheng Chi University of Taiwan. Mr Chen
joined the Group since 1988 and has over 30 years of experience in
the footwear industry. Mr Chen is an uncle of Mr Chen Ying-Chieh and
Chang Chih-Kai.

Mr Chang Chih-Kai, aged 28, has studied a bachelor’s degree of
Art in Auckland University after graduated from Pakuranga College in
New Zealand. He joined the Company since 2003 with focus on shoe
development and sales and marketing. Mr Chang is a cousin of Mr Chen
Ying-Chieh and a nephew of Mr Chen Hsien Min.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Hsiao Hsi-Ming, aged 69, is a partner of an accounting firm in Taiwan.
He is a member of Taiwan Provincial CPA Association and has over 40
years of experience in auditing and accounting. Mr Hsiao holds a master’s
degree in the National Changhua University of Education and he is a
director of Tera Autotech Corporation Inc. (“TAC"”) and an independent
director of Formosa Optical Technology Co. Ltd. (“FOTCL"). Both TAC and
FOTCL are traded over-the-counter in Taiwan. Mr Hsiao was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company in 2004.

Mr Huang Shun-Tsai, aged 56, is a director of six technology companies
in Taiwan. He has been active in the technology field for over 10 years.
Mr Huang was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
the Company in 2001.

Mr Kuo Jung-Cheng, aged 59, is a director of a manufacturing and
distribution company in China. Mr Kuo is a former senator of the
Legislative House in Taiwan. He has been serving the community in Taiwan
as a representative for over 10 years. Mr Kuo holds an MBA degree from
the University of Hawaii. Mr Kuo was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in 2001.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr Xin Jia Hua, aged 55, is the vice general manager of brand business
of the Group. Mr Xin is responsible for the day-to-day operations of
brand business of the Group. Mr Xin joined the Group since 1994 and
he has over 30 years of experience in footwear manufacturing and
distribution business.

Mr Peng Yu, aged 37, was appointed as the vice general manager of
Shoebox brand business of the Group since January 2004 and he is
responsible for the planning and development of Shoebox brand business
including its day-to-day to operations. Mr Peng has over 15 years of
experience in footwear manufacturing and distribution business.

Ms Chao Huei Chuan, aged 42, is a vice general manager of brand
business of the Group. Ms Chao is responsible for planning and
overseeing the operation of the brand business in China. Ms Chao was
graduated from the Overseas Chinese Institute of Technology with major
in International Trade. She joined the Group since 1994 and she has nearly

20 years of experience in finance, accounting and management.

Mr Chang Chun Wang, aged 57, is the vice general manager of the
Group. Mr Chang is responsible for the Group’s production activities.
Mr Chang has nearly 30 years of experience in the footwear industry.
He has been working with the Group since 1994.

Mr Liao His-Chuan, aged 53, is the manager in charge of a major
manufacturing subsidiary of the Group. Mr Liao is responsible for the
day-to-day manufacturing operation of both OEM and brand businesses.
He has over 25 years of experience in the management of footwear
production facilities and he has been working with the Group since
1994.

Mr Hsu Szu Che, aged 56, is the senior manager of the general
administration and management of the Group’s sales office and
manufacturing facilities in Mainland China. Mr Hsu has over 27 years
of experience in the administration and management of footwear
manufacturing facilities. He has been working with the Group since
1994.

Ms Chi Shu Tzu, aged 42,
footwear. She is responsible for sales and marketing of certain overseas

is the vice general manager of ladies’

customers. Ms Chi has over 25 years of experience in the footwear
industry. She has been working with the Group since 1994.
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Ms Chen Li Hui, aged 44, is the general manager of sports footwear.
She is responsible for sales and marketing of sports products. Ms Chen
has over 24 years of experience in the footwear industry. She has been
working with the Group since 1994.

Ms Chen Pi Er, aged 46, is a senior manager of the finance department of
the Group. Ms Chen is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
and customs duties of the manufacturing business of the Group. Ms Chen
joined the Group since 1994 and she has over 20 years of experience

in manufacturing business.

Mr Ying Chung Chieh, Alfred, aged 44, is the vice president of
investor relations of the Group. Mr Ying joined the Group in 2007 and
he has over 12 years of experience in the financial equity market. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr Ying led an equity research team at Grand
Cathay Securities and BNP Paribas Peregrine Securities in Taiwan for 6
years. Mr Ying holds an MBA degree from the University of New South
Wales in Australia and a master’s degree in Science from National Chiao
Tung University in Taiwan.

Mr Cheung Chun Hay, Hayes, aged 35, is the assistant general
manager of the Company. He is responsible for the Group’s overall
financial management and oversees strategic planning for development.
Mr Cheung holds a bachelor’s degree from the City University of Hong
Kong and also qualified as a certified public accountant with the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr Cheung had worked for an international accounting firm,
listed and private companies in Hong Kong. He has extensive experience
in the fields of auditing, accounting and finance.

Ms Chan Oi Chu, aged 32, is the financial controller and company
secretary of the Group. Ms Chan has over 10 years of experience in
auditing, accounting, financial management and company secretarial
in Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group in 2004, Ms Chan worked
in a listed company in Hong Kong and she also has over 5 years of
experience in an international accounting firm. She holds a bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration (Financial Accounting) from the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology and is an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. To enhance the overall management quality of the Company,
the Board has adopted corporate governance practices with special
emphasis on an effective Board for leadership and control, sound
business ethics and integrity in all business activities, transparency and
accountability to shareholders.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year, the Company has adopted and complied with code
provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted stringent procedures governing directors’
securities transactions in compliance with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. All directors and chief executives of
the Company have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) currently comprises six members,
three executive directors (including Chairman and Managing Director)
and three independent non-executive directors. The executive directors
draw on a rich and diverse experience from the footwear business
while the independent non-executive directors possess appropriate
professional qualifications and management expertise. Each independent
non-executive director gives the Company an annual confirmation of
his independence to the Company, and the Company considers these
directors to be independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The names, brief biography of the directors and relationship among
them are set out on page 15 under Biography of Directors and Senior
Management.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to formulate overall
strategy of the Group, monitor its financial performance and maintain
effective oversight over the management. Sufficient notice of meetings
is given to directors prior to a regular Board meeting, and each director
may request inclusion of matters in the agenda for Board meetings. A
detailed agenda, minutes of the previous meeting and accompanying
board papers are sent to directors before the meeting to facilitate
informed discussion and decision-making.
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Every board member is entitled to have access to board papers and
related materials and has access to the advice and services of the
company secretary, and has the liberty to seek external professional
advice if necessary. The company secretary is responsible to the Board
for ensuring the procedures are followed and that all applicable rules
and regulations are complied with.

During the year, six full board meetings were held and the attendance
of each director is set out on page 23.

The Board has established three committees, the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, to assist it in overseeing
the Group’s affairs. Each committee has defined terms of reference
setting out its duties, powers and functions and are posted on the
Company’s website. The committees report regularly to the Board and
make recommendations on matters where appropriate. The Board, in
addition to its overall supervisory role, retains specific responsibilities such
as approving specific senior appointments, approving financial accounts,
recommending dividend payments, approving policies relating to the
Board's compliance, etc.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Chairman and the Managing Director (i.e. Chief Executive) of the
Company are Mr Chen Ying-Chieh and Mr Chen Hsien Min respectively.
Mr Chen Ying-Chieh is the nephew of Mr Chen Hsien Min. The roles
of the Chairman and Managing Director are segregated to assume a
balance of authority and power.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and are eligible for re-election. Every director newly appointed by
the Board is subject to election at the first general meeting after his/her
appointment.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed director of the Company, on the first occasion of
his appointment, shall receive a tailored induction on the responsibilities
and on-going obligations to be observed by a director. In addition, the
senior management and the company secretary will conduct briefing if
necessary to ensure that the directors have a proper understanding of
the operations and business of the Group and that they are aware of
their responsibilities under the laws and applicable regulations.
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The functions of non-executive directors, as per the terms of reference
of the Board, have included the functions as specified in Code Provisions
A.5.2 (a) to (d) of the Code.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee of the Company, comprising one executive
director and three independent non-executive directors, was formed on
22 April 2005.

Major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are as
follows:

e To review the structure, size and composition of the Board on a
regular basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding
any proposed changes.

e Toidentify individuals suitably qualified to become board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individual nominated for directorships.

e To access the independence of independent non-executive
directors.

e To make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors in particular the Chairman and the Managing
Director.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. During the
year, one Nomination Committee meeting was held and the attendance
of each member is set out on page 23.

At a meeting held during the year, the independence of independent
non-executive directors was considered and the re-appointment of
retiring directors which were approved by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting was recommended.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company, comprising one executive
director and three independent non-executive directors, was formed on
22 April 2005.
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r roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are as

follows:

To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing policy on such remuneration

To have the delegated responsibility to determine the specific
remuneration packages of all executive directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and make
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-executive
directors. The Remuneration Committee should consider factors such
as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions elsewhere
in the group and desirability of performance-based remuneration

To review and approve performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the board

from time to time

To review and approve the compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management in connection with any loss or
termination of their office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive
for the Company

To review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
such arrangements are determined in accordance with relevant
contractual terms and that any compensation payment is otherwise
reasonable and appropriate

To ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. During the

year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held and the attendance

of ea

ch member is set out on page 23.
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At a meeting held during the year, the overall pay levels in Hong Kong,
China and Taiwan where the Group has establishments were reviewed
and considered. The remuneration of directors is pre-determined and
is based on their respective contractual terms of appointment, if any,
and as recommended by the Remuneration Committee. Details of the
emoluments paid/payable to individual director of the Company are set
out in Note 14 to the accounts.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises all three independent non-executive
directors of the Company. Major roles and functions of the Audit
Committee are as follows:

e  To consider the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditors, and to approve the remuneration and the terms
of engagement of the external auditors, including both audit and
non-audit services, and any questions of resignation or dismissal
of the external auditors of the Group

e To assess the independence of external auditors and discuss with
the external auditors the nature and scope of the audit

. To review interim and annual accounts before submission to the
Board

. To review the financial controls, internal controls and risk

management system of the Group and make recommendations to

the Board

e  To review the external auditors’ management letter and material
queries raised by the auditors to management in respect of
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response

At the meetings held during the year, the Audit Committee had performed
the following work:

. To review the annual accounts and interim accounts

e To review external auditors’ audit plan, terms of engagement and

recommend the fees for the Board’s approval

e Toreview the management letters and reports issued by the external
auditors

. To review the effectiveness of internal control and financial control

systems
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To consider and review material related party transactions and
connected transactions if any

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year. During the year, two
Audit Committee meetings were held and attended by external auditors
of the Company. The attendance of each member to the meetings is
set out on page 23

ATTENDANCE OF BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES’
MEETINGS

The attendance rates of individual members in Board and Board
Committees’ meetings held in 2008 are detailed as follows:
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Number of meetings attended/held in 2008

CRE\FHR/ETEEAR
Remuneration Nomination Audit Attendance
Board Committee Committee  Committee rate
ES2 HMZEE® REZEE  ENRZEEE HE =
Executive directors HITEZE
Mr Chen Ying-Chieh (Chairman) BREALE (FE) 5/5 - 11 - 100%
Mr Chen Hsien Min (Managing Director) REREE (EFL4HE) 5/5 11 - - 100%
Mr Chang Chih-Kai RESEE 5/5 - - - 100%
Independent non-executive directors BUHHTEF
Mr Hsiao Hsi Ming (Chairman of Audit FEREE
Committee) (BRZEELE) 4/5 1 1 33 90%
Mr Huang Shun Tsai (Chairman of e
Nomination Committee) (BEZRELE) 4/5 17 17N 23 90%
Mr Kuo Jung Cheng (Chairman of BERESEE
Remuneration Committee) (HBZEELE) 4/5 171 1N 33 90%
INTERNAL CONTROL W EREE I

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal
controls to safeguard the Company’s assets. The Board and the Audit
Committee periodically reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group which covered financial, operational, compliance
and risk management functions. The Board also appoints from time to
time external professional to review the Group’s major internal control
procedures and report findings and areas for improvements to the Board
Committees. The Board and the Audit Committee consider that the key
aspects of the Group’s internal control systems are reasonably addressed
and the Group has fully complied with the Code Provisions in general.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of accounts
of each financial period, which give a true and fair of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing
the accounts, the directors adopt applicable accounting policies and apply
consistently. The directors also make prudent and reasonable judgements
and to ensure the accounts are on going concern basis.

MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for formulating overall strategy, monitoring and
controlling the performance of the Group whilst managing the Group’s
business is the responsibility of the management.

While the Board delegates aspects of its management and administration
functions to management, it has given clear directions as to the powers
of management, in particular, with respect to the circumstances where
management shall report back and obtain prior approval from the Board
before making decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf
of the Company.

Matters reserved to be approved by the Board include:

e Appointment of directors and senior executives

e Business plans and establishment of new markets

e Proposal for selection of external auditors

o Financial accounts and budgets

° Substantial capital investments and commitments

e  Formation of policies and codes as required by regulatory bodies
o Formation of board committees

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the fees paid/payable to the Company’s external auditor,

PricewaterhouseCoopers, for the provision of audit services and non-audit
services amounted to HK$3,200,000 and HK$ 1,336,480 respectively.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
The board recognises the importance of good communication with all
shareholders and potential investors. Communication with shareholders,
investors and analysts are maintained through the followings:

e Delivery of interim and annual reports to all shareholders through
either printed or electronic forms

e Publication of announcements on the interim and annual results on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company, and issue
of other announcements and shareholders’ circulars in accordance
with the continuing disclosure obligations under Listing Rules

. Holding of annual and special general meetings to provide a channel
for the Chairman of the Board and the Board Committees to
answer shareholders’ questions as well as seeking approval from
shareholders for relevant business and capital transactions. At
the annual general meetings, a separate resolution was proposed
by the Chairman in respect of each separate issue including the
re-election of directors

e  Establishing dedicated divisions and personnel for liaison with
investors and analysts by answering their questions

e Arranging on-site visits to the company’s establishments to enhance
their timely understanding of the situations and latest development
of the Company’s business operations

o Making available information on the Company’s website, including
description of the Company and its business, the Board and
corporate governance, results of the Company, financial highlights
and promotional materials, etc.

° Actively communicating with various parties, in particular, convening
briefing sessions, press conferences and individual meetings with
institutional investors upon the announcements of the interim and
annual results and making decisions on material investments. The
Company also participates in a range of investor activities and

communicates on one-on-one basis with its investors regularly

The procedures of shareholders voting by poll at the annual general
meetings were incorporated in the circular despatched together with the
annual report to shareholders. The Company is responsible for ensuring
the votes are properly counted and recorded.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited accounts of
the Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2008.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 17 June 2008, the name of the Company was changed
from Prime Success International Group Limited to Daphne International
Holdings Limited with effect from 18 June 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 18 to the accounts. The Group
is principally engaged in the manufacturing and distribution of footwear,
apparel and accessories mainly in China.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
An analysis of the Group’s performance by business and geographical
segments is set out in Note 5 to the accounts.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
profit and loss account on page 35.

The board of directors has declared an interim dividend of HK2.5 cents
per ordinary share, totalling HK$40,947,000, which was paid on 30
October 2008.

The board of directors recommends the payment of a final dividend of
HK3.0 cents per ordinary share, totalling HK$49,137,000 in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2008.

RESERVES

The distributable reserves of the Company, calculated in accordance with
the Companies Laws Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961 as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands, as at 31 December 2008 amounted to
HK$192,354,000.

The share premium o f the Company is available for distribution or paying
dividends to the shareholders provided that immediately following the
distribution or the payment of dividends, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The share
premium account may also be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 28 to the accounts.
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DONATIONS
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$10,458,000 (2007: HK$427,000).

FIXED ASSETS
Movements in fixed assets of the Group are set out in Note 17 to the
accounts.

SHARE CAPITAL
There were no movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 96.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association and there was no restriction against such rights under the
laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of
the Company’s shares during the year.

DIRECTORS
The directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr Chen Ying-Chieh (Chairman)

Mr Chen Hsien Min (Managing Director)
Mr Chang Chih-Kai

Independent non-executive directors
Mr Hsiao Hsi-Ming

Mr Huang Shun-Tsai

Mr Kuo Jung-Cheng

In accordance with Article 99 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr Chen Ying-Chieh and Mr Chen Hsien Min will retire by rotation and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The term of directorship of all the independent non-executive directors
is one year and the term will continue for successive period of one year
unless terminated by either party giving not less than one month’s notice
to the other party.
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All the independent non-executive directors have confirmed their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and based on
such confirmation, the Company is of the opinion that the independence
status of the independent non-executive directors remains intact as at
31 December 2008.

BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biography of directors and senior management are set out on
pages 15 to 17.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
As at 31 December 2008, the interests of each director and chief
executive in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code were as follows:
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Percentage of
the issued share

Long/short capital of

Name of director Nature of interest Number of shares held position the Company
EADEE BT

EEpA EmftE FERHHE HR KR RABDEE
Mr Chen Ying-Chieh  Corporate 147,738,920 (Note) Long 9.02
BREENFEE NG 147,738,920(Ffi5E) R 9.02

Note: Mr Chen Ying-Chieh has beneficial interest in 147,738,920 shares in the Company
through Pushkin Holding Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, in which Mr Chen Ying-Chieh holds one-third of the equity interest.
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In addition to the above, Mr Chen Hsien Min, the Managing Director
of the Company, also holds non-voting deferred shares and nominee
shares of certain subsidiaries solely for the purpose of ensuring that the

relevant subsidiaries have more than one member.

Save as disclosed above and the section “SHARE OPTION SCHEME", as
at 31 December 2008, none of the directors or chief executive, nor any
of their associates (including their spouses and children under 18 years of
age), had any interests in or had been granted, or exercised, any rights
to subscribe for shares of the Company and its associated corporations
required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors and chief executives
of the Company (including their spouses and children under 18 years of
age) to hold any interests or short positions in shares or underlying shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated corporations.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 29 May 2003 to provide incentives to the employees,
including any executive and non-executive directors and officers of the
Company and its subsidiaries, to contribute to the Group and to enable
the Group to recruit high-calibre employees and attract and retain human
resources that are valuable to the Group. Pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme, the directors may, at their discretion, invite eligible participants
including employees, executive and non-executive directors, officers,
agents or consultants of the Group to take up options to subscribe for the
Company'’s shares subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.
Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the Share Option Scheme will

remain in force for ten years.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed (i) 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on
17 June 2008, the date of approval from shareholders of the Company
after the adoption of the Share Option Scheme on 29 May 2003; or
(ii) 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.
No options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme if this will
result in such limit exceeded unless another shareholders’ approval is
obtained. As at 31 December 2008, the number of shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme is 163,789,238, representing
10% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue. The total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options (whether exercised or outstanding) granted in any 12-month
period to each participant must not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue.
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The exercise price must be at least the highest of: (a) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant; (b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of
the shares.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The number of share options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and outstanding throughout the year ended 31 December 2008 were
as follows:
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Executive directors HITES
Mr Chen Ying-Chieh PRIEZN A
Mr Chen Hsien Min RERLE
Mr Chang Chih-Kai R A
Other participants Hin2 ¥
Employees BB

All the above options are granted on 23 February 2007 and exercisable
from 23 August 2007 to 22 August 2009 at an exercise price of
HK$8.90.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, no share options were granted,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the Share Option Scheme.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under Section
336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2008, the
Company had been notified of the following substantial shareholders’
interests, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital.
These interests are in addition to those disclosed under the section
“"DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES" INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY ™.

1,250,000
1,100,000
1,250,000

3,100,000
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EERHE
Percentage of
the issued share
Number of Long/short capital of
Name Capacity shares held position the Company
HARRERT
A% L) FERAEE #E/ %R BRARD
Lucky Earn International Limited Beneficial interests 424,019,995  (Note 1) Long 25.89
ERBEBA GiE e
Top Glory Assets Limited Beneficial interests 200,846,895  (Note 2) Long 12.26
ERBEBA (WsE2) e
Ms Chen Yi-Chen Interests of controlled corporation 200,846,895  (Note 2) Long 12.26
RiegLt RERA R (WE2) e
Mr Chen Yi-Hsun Interests of controlled corporation 200,846,895  (Note 2) Long 12.26
RIGEILE RERTA B (WE2) e
Pushkin Holding Limited Beneficial interests 147,738,920  (Note 3) Long 9.02
ERBEBA (W5E3) e
Mr Chen Ying-Chieh Interests of controlled corporation 147,738,920 (Note 3) Long 9.02
RERTE RERA R (W5E3) e
Mr Chen Ying-Tien Interests of controlled corporation 147,738,920  (Note 3) Long 9.02
REHE ST RERTA B (W5E3) e
Mr Chen Ying-Che Interests of controlled corporation 147,738,920  (Note 3) Long 9.02
RELLE RERTA B (W5E3) e
Sansar Capital Management, LLC Investment manager 224,589,400  (Note 4) Long 13.71
REGR (WizEa) e
Sansar Capital Master Fund, LP Beneficial interests 196,539,040 Long 12.00
ERAAA e
Notes: MzE -

1. Mr Chang Chih-Kai, an executive director of the Company, his brother and his 1.

two sisters have beneficial interests of 26%, 26% and 24% each, respectively,

in Lucky Earn International Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin

Islands.

2. Ms Chen Yi-Chen (“Ms Chen") and Mr Chen Yi-Hsun (“Mr Chen") have beneficial 2.
interests of 50% each in Top Glory Assets Limited, a company incorporated in the

British Virgin Islands. By virtue of the SFO, they are deemed to be interested in
200,846,895 shares of the Company held by Top Glory Assets Limited. Ms Chen
and Mr Chen are the children of Mr Chen Hsien Min, the Managing Director of

the Company.

3. Mr Chen Ying-Chieh, the Chairman of the Company, and his two brothers, Mr 3.
Chen Ying-Tien and Mr Chen Ying-Che, each has one-third of the beneficial

interests of Pushkin Holding Limited. By virtue of the SFO, they are deemed to
be interested in the 147,738,920 shares of the Company held by Pushkin Holding

Limited.

These interests include the shares held by Sansar Capital Master Fund, LP.

SHOEBOXE@

ARBMITEEFTREINEE B2 BRMEBHKD
A ERERERBR ZHSFMAZ Lucky Earn
International Limited 26% - 26% 24 %1E25 ©

MiegEL (Rt ) REREBEETREEDSEER
WEEEEEZBFSEMAN 2 Top Glory Assets Limited
50% M- BEEFFRPERA - REWRARE Top
Glory Assets Limited FT#§%,2200,846,895 A &% {5
FHEAED RETRREERADRESREERER
FHEZTL -

RARERRENG AR 2 MA L BREASE KRR
EHEEESAELRMEAB Pushkin Holding Limited =52
—REE o REBEEFRBEERD - BEWIE B Pushkin
Holding Limited FT#74 2 147,738,9200% 42 1A% 17
G -

BRAEZEBE Sansar Capital Master Fund, LP BB 2
f&15 °
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The aggregate sales during the year attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers were less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest and five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 20% and 53%, respectively,
of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company
which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital, had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest suppliers.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Information on the Company’s compliance of the Code of Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules is
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 18 to 25.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

On the basis of information that is publicly available to and within the
knowledge of the directors of the Company, the Company has maintained
a sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares
throughout the year and up to the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chen Ying-Chieh

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 April 2009
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EXREEKRERAERA2A

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
DR TR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
DAPHNE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated accounts of Daphne International
Holdings Limited (the”Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the” Group”) set out on pages 35 to 95, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2008, and the
consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated accounts in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of accounts that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated accounts
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether

the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Daphne International Holdings Limited
3 Annual Report 2008
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R R

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the accounts in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated accounts give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 16 April 2009
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
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EXREEKRERAERA2A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 &#Z—ZZ/\F+-A=+—HILLFE
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2008 2007
—EENFE .
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
s FHT FAET
Turnover L 5 5,289,297 3,853,580
Cost of sales B4 E AR (2,501,911)  (2,023,801)
Gross profit EF 2,787,386 1,829,779
Other income HAb Mg A 6 20,738 39,830
Other (losses)/gains — net Hity (E518) as— 58 7 (25,957) 8,677
Selling and distribution expenses HE Mo (1,821,969) (1,122,157)
General and administrative expenses —MRITHEE (281,218) (214,996)
Operating profit £ A 678,980 541,133
Finance costs U SN (13,307) (11,341)
Share of profit of an associated company FE(L — R & A R & A 594 226
Profit before taxation BRAAIEF 666,267 530,018
Taxation I8 10 (169,090) (141,298)
Profit for the year FREN 497,177 388,720
Attributable to: AT &5 B -
Equity holders of the Company RAFIERFFEA 492,920 384,383
Minority interests DR E R 4,257 4,337
497,177 388,720
Dividends i8] 12 90,084 81,894
Basic and diluted earnings per share (HK cents) &EREARESERF] (BW) 13 30.09 23.47

SHOEBOXE@
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EXEEKRERAERAA

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEERER

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2008 R=ZZF/\F+=-A=+—H

2008 2007
—ZEN\F ZETLF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BsE FET FHETT
Non-current assets EMEBEE
Intangible assets B EE 15 39,447 25,685
Land use rights T Hb A AR 16 44,944 40,891
Fixed assets BEE&E 17 574,735 500,365
Interest in an associated company R—KEE R E 2w 20 3,134 2,567
Available-for-sale financial assets AHESHERE 21 33,624 33,624
Long-term rental deposits and prepayments KA L e RIENFIA 87,703 86,833
Deferred tax assets RIEFR I E 2= 29 31,771 37,472
815,358 727,437
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 22 1,355,280 992,051
Trade receivables 2 5 IR 23 162,967 155,062
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments — EfEUERF - ke RIETFIA 480,794 303,209
Derivative financial instruments PTAESRITA = 2,450
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBeEEY 24 147,962 181,692
2,147,003 1,634,464
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade payables 2 SRR 25 397,006 461,099
Other payables and accrued charges Hib e BRI R BT B 221,368 170,336
Taxation payable JEZ TR 165,325 127,191
Bank loans RITER 26 270,655 194,978
1,054,354 953,604
Net current assets MEEEFE 1,092,649 680,860
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRESEE 1,908,007 1,408,297
Financed by: B2 HIR
Share capital [N 27 163,789 163,789
Reserves fEE 28 1,690,744 1,209,295
Equity attributable to equity RATRERFEEA
holders of the Company JE(GRE = 1,854,533 1,373,084
Minority interests LERERER 36,765 34,098
Total equity B 1,891,298 1,407,182
Non-current liabilities e N=Er
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIEAE 29 1,555 1,115
License fees payable JERRRT R E 30 15,154 -
16,709 1,115
Total equity and non-current liabilities BRE=RIERBBE 1,908,007 1,408,297

CHEN YING-CHIEH FREA
Chairman F /&

CHEN HSIEN MIN RER
Managing director & % A2 4< 12
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2008 2007
—ZETN\F ZETLF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
BT FHET FHETT

Non-current assets EMBNEE
Investments in subsidiaries KB AR ZIE 18 165,635 165,635

Current assets MENEE
Other receivables E A FEURER SR 230 230
Amount due from a subsidiary JEU — R A BIRR R 19 200,348 207,986
Cash and cash equivalents RERKBEEED 24 138 178
200,716 208,394
Current liabilities mEAafsE

Accrued charges EETE A 7.326 2,292
Amount due to a subsidiary JER—RWEB A RIERK - 1,157
7,326 3,449
Net current assets MEVEEFE 193,390 204,945
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREDAE 359,025 370,580

Financed by: BEE&HIR
Share capital [N 27 163,789 163,789
Reserves {1 28 195,236 206,791
Total equity e 359,025 370,580

CHEN

YING-CHIEH BRER
Chairman F /&
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEDBER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 H#Z—ZZ/\F+=-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to
equity holders
of the Company

ANAERHEAERL
Share Minority
capital  Reserves interests Total
R R SHRRESR @t
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bzt FET AT TET FET
At 1 January 2007 RZET+EF—[—H 163,789 817,519 31,904 1,013,212
Currency translation differences EXER - 77,495 1,537 79,032
Net gain recognised directly in equity ERENEERAC N TE - 77,495 1,537 79,032
Profit for the year FREF - 384,383 4337 388,720
Total income recognised for the year FABAWALEE - 461,878 5874 467,752
Share-based payment expenses R AR 2 FERE 28 11,792 - 11,792
Dividends ) - (81,894) (3,533) (85,427)
Acquisition of minority interests W ek FER - - (1,397) (1,397)
Capital injection by a minority shareholder LERFFE - - 1,250 1,250
- (70,102) (3,680) (73,782)
At 31 December 2007 RIERHF+-A=+—H 163,789 1,209,295 34,098 1,407,182
Currency translation differences EiZE - 69,910 2,477 72,387
Realisation upon disposal of a subsidiary HE-FHEARNLE - (3,488) - (3,488)
Transferred to profit and loss account upon THESREERE
impairment of an available-for-sale financial asset ~ HEABRK - 4,000 - 4,000
Write-back of unclaimed dividends BERERRE - 1 - 1
Net gain recognised directly in equity HEREZRIAZUERE - 70,423 2,477 72,900
Profit for the year FREF - 492,920 4,257 497,177
Total income recognised for the year FREARALE - 563,343 6,734 570,077
Dividends BRE - (81,894) (3,932) (85,826)
Repayment of advance from a minority shareholder EE > HRREF - - (135) (135)
_______________________________________________________________________________________ - (81894)  (4,067) _ (85961)
At 31 December 2008 R-EENE+-HA=1-H 163,789 1,690,744 36,765 1,891,298
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

n _\’%Iﬁﬁﬁii

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 &#Z—ZZ/\F+-A=+—HILLFE

2008 2007
—EENF .
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E FERT F&IT
Operating activities KRS
Cash generated from operations BEEECZRS 31 304,474 324,167
Tax paid outside Hong Kong B EB AN @ T IE (131,284) (80,900)
_Net cash generated from operating activities WRABEELREFR [ RERE) 243,267
Investing activities WA G
Acquisition of minority interests in subsidiaries U BEBT B A &) 2 D Bk g - (1,664)
Dividend received from an associated company © U4—ZEt = A FIES 207 199
Interest received B U F 8 2,715 4,413
Payment for land use rights Tk RN R (4,506) (10,394)
Purchase of fixed assets BERTETEE (229,821) (178,653)
Proceeds from disposal of land use rights & T s AR S U e 605 -
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets HEBREEEMSRS 9,651 1,806
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE—RKB AR 32 25,049 -
_Net cash used in investing activities ~ REEBFAzREFR (196,100)  _ (184,293)
Financing activities BEEE
Contribution by a minority shareholder VYRR EEE - 1,250
Dividends paid B E (81,894) (81,894)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders BENLHRERE (3,932) (3,533)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BRI RO - 6,000
Interest paid BERFE (12,234) (11,341)
New bank loans raised MEERITER 199,543 255,604
Repayment of bank loans BEIRITER (126,015) (243,820)
Repayment of advance from a minority BRVBIRRBHR
shareholder (135) -
_Net cash used in financing activities REZBAZRERR L 4se]) (77.734)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents RekReEBWRLDS (47,577) (18,760)
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January R—R—RAZBEELREEEY 24 181,692 148,699
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ERgawe 13,847 51,753
Cash and cash equivalents RTZA=+—HzR& R
as at 31 December ReEEY 24 147,962 181,692

SHOEBOXE@
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
AR B B aE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Daphne International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) is principally engaged in the
manufacturing and distribution of footwear, apparel and accessories
in China with major export market in the United States of America
(the “US").

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. The address of its registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 17 June 2008, the name of the Company was
changed from Prime Success International Group Limited to Daphne
International Holdings Limited with effect from 18 June 2008.

These consolidated accounts have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 16 April 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated accounts are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated accounts have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). The consolidated accounts
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial
assets, financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of accounts in conformity with HKFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
accounts, are disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
AR B B L

2,

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(i)

Standards, amendments and interpretations
effective and adopted by the Group in 2008

HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”, amendment on reclassification of
financial assets permits reclassification of certain financial
assets out of the held for trading and available-for-
sale categories if specified conditions are met. The
related amendment to HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments:
Disclosures” introduces disclosure requirements with
respect to financial assets reclassified out of the held for
trading and available-for-sale categories. The amendment

is effective prospectively from 1 July 2008.

HK(IFRIC) = Int 11 “HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share
Transactions” provides guidance on whether share-based
transactions involving treasury shares or involving group
entities (for example, options over a parent's shares)
should be accounted for equity-settled or cash-settled
share-based payment transactions in the stand-alone
accounts of the parent and group companies.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 12 "Service Concession Arrangements”
resulted in changes in accounting policies on accounting

for services concession arrangements of the Group.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 “HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their
Interaction” provides guidance on assessing the limit
in HKAS 19 on the amount of the surplus that can
be recognised as an asset. It also explains how the
pension asset or liability may be affected by a statutory

or contractual minimum funding requirement.

The adoption of the above new/revised HKFRSs has no
impact on the preparation and presentation of the results
and financial position of the Group for the current or
prior accounting periods.
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(ij) Standards, amendments and interpretations to

existing standards that have been issued and
relevant to the Group but are not yet effective
nor have been adopted by the Group in 2008
HKAS 1 (Revised) “Presentation of Financial Statements”’
prohibits the presentation of items of income and
expenses (that is, “non-owner changes in equity”) in the
statement of changes in equity, requiring “non-owner
changes in equity” to be presented separately from owner
changes in equity. All non-owner changes in equity will
be required to be shown in a performance statement, but
entities can choose whether to present on performance
statement (the statement of comprehensive income) or
two statements (the consolidated profit and loss account
and statement of comprehensive income). Where entities
restate or reclassify comparative information, they will
be required to present a restated balance sheet as at the
beginning comparative period in addition to the current
requirement to present balance sheets at the end of the
current period and comparative period.

HKAS 23 (Revised) “Borrowing Costs”' requires an entity
to capitaise borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset (one that takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for use or sale) as part of the cost of that asset.
The option of immediately expensing those borrowing

costs will be removed.

HKAS 27 (Revised) “Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements”? requires the effects of all transactions
with non-controlling interests to be recorded in equity
if there is no change in control and these transactions
will no longer results in goodwill or gains and losses. The
standard also specifies the accounting when control is
lost. Any remaining interest in the entity is re-measured
to fair value and a gain or loss is recognised in profit
and loss.
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AR B BEE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(i) Standards, amendments and interpretations to

existing standards that have been issued and relevant
to the Group but are not yet effective nor havee
been adopted by the Group in 2008 (continued)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) “Share-based Payment”' deals
with vesting conditions and cancellations. It clarifies that
vesting conditions are service conditions and performance
conditions only. Other features of a share-based payment
are not vesting conditions. As such these features would
need to be included in the grant date fair value for
transactions with employees and others providing similar
services, that is, these features would not impact the
number of awards expected to vest or valuation thereof
subsequent to grant date. All cancellations, whether by
the entity or by other parties, should receive the same

accounting treatment.

HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business Combination”? continues to
apply the acquisition method to business combinations,
with some significant changes. For examples, all
payments to purchase a business are to be recorded
at fair value at the acquisition date, with contingent
payments classified as debt subsequently re-measured
through the consolidated profit and loss account. There is
a choice on an acquisition by acquisition basis to measure
the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets. All acquisition-related
costs should be expensed.

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”' replaces HKAS 14
“Segment Reporting” and aligns segment reporting
with the requirements of the US standard SFAS 131
“Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information”. The new standard requires
a "management approach”, under which segment
information is presented on the same basis as that used
for internal reporting purposes.
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(i) Standards, amendments and interpretations to

existing standards that have been issued and relevant
to the Group but are not yet effective nor have been
adopted by the Group in 2008 (continued)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17" Distribution of Non-cash Assets to
Owners"? requires a dividend payable to be recognised
when it has been appropriately authorised and to be

measured at fair value.

HKICPA's improvements to HKFRS published in October
2008*

These include HKAS 28 (Amendment) “Investments
in Associates” (and consequential amendments to
HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation” and
HKFRS 7 “Financial Instrument: Disclosures”), HKAS 29
(Amendment) “Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies”, HKAS 31 (Amendment) “Interests in Joint
Ventures” (and consequential amendments to HKAS
32 and HKFRS 7), HKAS 40 (Amendment) “Investment
Property” (and consequential amendments to HKAS
16), HKAS 41 (Amendment) “Agriculture” and HKFRS
5 (Amendment) “Non-current Assets held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” (and consequential amendment
to HKFRS 1 “First-time Adoption”).

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
related impact to the Group but is not yet in a position
to state whether substantial changes to the Group’s

accounting policies and presentation of the accounts

will be resulted.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2. FESHHBEE)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued) (a) mEEE(E)
(iiij) Standards, amendments and interpretations to (iii) R=ZFZ)\FEHBE(E 45K 4L % HE

existing standards that have been issued in 2008 but
not yet effective and not relevant to the Group

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Puttable Financial Instruments

(Amendments) and Obligations Arising on
Liquidation'

HKAS 39 (Amendments) Eligible Hedged Items?

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
and HKAS 27 Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate’
(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 and Embedded Derivatives®

HKAS 39 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 1 Customer Loyalty Programmes?

HK(IFRIC) - Int 15 Accounting for Agreements for
the Construction of Real Estate’

HK(IFRIC) - Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation®

HK(IFRIC) - Int 18 Transfer of Assets from
Customers’

! Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009

2 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009

3 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July
2008

4 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1

January 2009 except the amendments to HKFRS 5 which is

effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July

2009

° Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 30 June
2009

B Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
October 2008

7 Effective for transfer on or after 1 July 2009
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(b) Consolidation
The consolidated accounts include the accounts of the Company

46

and all of its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The
cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of
the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs
directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the
extent of any minority interest. The excess of the cost
of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in the consolidated profit

and loss account.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Consolidation (continued)

(iij) Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with
minority interests as transactions with parties external
to the Group. Disposals to minority interests result in
gains or losses for the Group that are recorded in the
consolidated profit and loss account. Purchases from
minority interests result in goodwill, being the difference
between any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary.

(iiij) Associated company

An associated company is an entity over which the
Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investment in an associated company
is accounted for using the equity method of accounting
and are initially recognised at cost.

The Group's share of its associated company’s post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group's share of losses in the associated
company equals or exceeds its interest in the associated
company, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associated company.

(c) Foreign currency translation

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Each of the Group’s entities determines its own functional
currency and items included in the accounts of each
of Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
accounts are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is
different from the Company’s functional currency of
Renminbi. The directors consider that the presentation
of consolidated accounts in Hong Kong dollar will
facilitate the presentation and understanding of financial
information of the Group.
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(c)
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Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the profit and loss

account.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented
in the consolidated profit and loss account within finance
costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated profit and loss account
within other (losses)/gains — net.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as available-
for-sale are analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the
security and other changes in the carrying amount of
the security. Translation differences related to changes in
the amortised cost are recognised in the profit and loss
account, and other changes in the carrying amount are
recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities are recognised in the profit and loss
account as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets such as
equities classified as available-for-sale are included in
the available-for-sale reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

—  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;
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2,

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii) Group companies (continued)

- income and expenses for each profit and loss
account are translated at average exchange rates;
and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations,
and of borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are taken
to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is
partially disposed of or sold, such exchange differences
are recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

(d) Operating leases

(e)

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for

as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases

(net of any incentives received from the lessor), including

upfront payment made for leasehold land use rights, are

charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis

over the lease periods.

Intangible assets

(i)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of
the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiaries
at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisition of
subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Separately
recognised goodwill is tested annually for impairment
and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.
Gains or losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity
sold.
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(e)

U]

(9)

50

Intangible assets (continued)

(i) Goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose.

(iij) License rights

Separately acquired license rights are stated at historical
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. They are initially measured as
the fair value of the consideration given to acquire the
license at the time of the acquisition. The consideration
given represents expected variable payments based on
predetermined criteria on future revenues from the
licensed business that can be reliably estimated at the
time of the acquisition.

Licensed rights are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the period of the rights.

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost mainly
represents the consideration paid for the right to use the
land on which various plants and buildings are situated for a
period of 10 to 50 years from the date the respective right
was granted. Amortisation of land use rights is calculated on
a straight-line basis over the period of the rights.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets, comprise leasehold buildings, leasehold
improvements, construction-in-progress, plant and machinery,
furniture, fixtures and equipment and motor vehicles, are
stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of

the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
expensed in the profit and loss account during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2. FESHEEE)
() BEEEGH)

(g) Fixed assets (continued)

Fixed assets are depreciated at rates sufficient to write off
their cost less accumulated impairment losses to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold buildings Over the terms of the
lease or 50 years,
whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements Over the terms of the
lease or 2 to 5

years, whichever

is shorter

Plant and machinery 20%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

Construction-in-progress represents fixed assets under
construction and pending installation and is stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes
the costs of construction of buildings and the costs of
plant and machinery. Borrowing costs incurred specifically
on construction-in-progress are capitalised into the carrying
value and all other borrowing costs are charged to the profit
and loss account in the period in which they are incurred. No
depreciation is charged on construction-in-progress until such
time as the relevant assets are completed and are available for
intended use. When the assets concerned are brought into
use, the costs are transferred to fixed assets and depreciated
in accordance with the policy stated above.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2(h)).

Gains or losses on disposals of fixed assets, the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant assets, are recognised in the profit and loss

account.
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(h)

0]

52

Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet
been available for use are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each balance sheet date.

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

(i)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are
classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current
assets.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the
balance sheet date which are classified as non-current
assets. Loans and receivables comprise trade receivables
and other receivables (Note2(l)), deposits and cash and
cash equivalents (Note 2(m)) in the balance sheet.
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Financial assets (continued)

Classification (continued)

(iii)  Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless management intends to dispose of the
investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in
the profit and loss account. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
financial assets classified under financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are presented in the profit and loss
account within other (losses)/gains — net in the period in
which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the profit and
loss account as part of other income when the Group's right
to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated
in a foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale are
analysed between translation differences resulting from
changes in amortised cost of the security and other changes in
the carrying amount of the security. The translation differences
on monetary securities are recognised in profit and loss
account; translation differences on non-monetary securities
are recognised in equity. Changes in the fair value of monetary
and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in equity.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2. FESHEEE)
(i) Financial assets (continued) (i) &WMEEE)
Recognition and measurement (continued) AR E(HE)
When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or ENRRAHEZEFEHINER - 2
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised RiEmERz Rt A FEEAR ABR
in equity are included in the profit and loss account as gains = IERTHE S RMEE 2 s EE o

and losses from available-for-sale financial assets.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised A AR AN T A 27 A SO T 7 72N 5 B U B
in the profit and loss account as part of other income when RIEZ R FEaRERASEMIKRA
the Group’s right to receive payments is established. Z—H5 e

The fair values of quoted financial assets are based on current FhemEEAFEENUETE AEBG
bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and HoWemMEEZTIHLNER( LRI
for unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by EMEAEME) NEBEUGETEHE
using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent ANEEE PERBEOBATRS 2%
arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that ABERzEMIE  BHRBEREDT
are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and &Hﬂﬁéiﬁﬁﬁf  BERATSEIERE
option pricing models, making maximum use of market inputs AIBERL A K REAR M Bl B S 1T 72 2 B o

and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is AEERBHEAERTMEEREERRE
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial TeMEER —HEREEDRE - BH
assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified MAHEZBRAZTEMS BFE2ZA
as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the FEENBIERAREERNEKANE - 8
fair value of the security below its cost is considered as an BIrREHEREDNR - WAL EemEE
indicator that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence ﬁﬁfﬂﬂ%ﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁ%\ C 2EHEBOREEX
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss AEBITATFEEREZEREIRER
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and RHERZERMEAETMRERHEFE)S
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial PR ERIBERER - E/\?Eﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
asset previously recognised in the profit and loss account is RZBATEREEE T8FREmE
removed from equity and recognised in the profit and loss Bl - & 5 EWERR 2 RIE) EUW?ﬁE/‘WuE
account. Impairment losses recognised in the profit and loss 2(I) °

account on equity instruments are not reversed through the
profit and loss account. Impairment test on trade receivables
is described in Note 2(l).

(j) Derivative financial instruments () fTEL@MITA
All derivative financial instruments are accounted for at fair Fﬁﬁ{)}ﬂiimﬂlﬁiﬁﬂqzﬁfﬁ#)\%/*
value through profit or loss and the gain or loss derived from NEFEEEHMELE 2 WSS EE—
changes in its fair value is recognised in the profit and loss ﬁxEATE SRR - MEBRIEERARZ
account unless the derivative financial instrument qualifies PTELS BT ARSI

for hedge accounting.
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(k)

0]

(m)

(n)

Inventories

Inventories comprise raw materials, work-in-progress and
finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, calculated on the weighted average
basis, comprises materials, direct labour, other direct costs
and related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity) and excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in
payments are considered indicators that the trade receivable
is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The amount of the loss upon provision
made is recognised in the profit and loss account. When a
trade receivable is proven uncollectible, it is written off against
the provision for impairment of trade and other receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to the profit and loss account.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, time deposits and other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Trade payables
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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(o)

(p)

56

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
the profit and loss account over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Current and deferred taxation

Taxation for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
Taxation is recognised in the profit and loss account except
that it relates to items recognised directly in equity and in
which case it is recognised in equity. The current income tax
charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries/places where the Company and its subsidiaries and
associated company operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred taxation is recognised using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
accounts. However, the deferred taxation is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred taxation is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(p) Current and deferred taxation (continued)

(a)

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences arising

on investments in subsidiaries and an associated company

except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary

difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that

the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Pension obligations
The Group participates in a number of defined
contribution retirement schemes in Hong Kong, Taiwan

and various cities in China where the Group operates.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions to separately
administered funds on a mandatory, contractual or
voluntary basis. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the funds do
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave
the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extend that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses with reference to a number of factors including
the Group’s operating results, individual and market
performance and directors’ discretion. The Group
recognises a provision where contractually obliged
or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.
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Employee benefits (continued)
(iiij) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan under which the Group entities receive
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market service and
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and retaining an employee of the
Group entity over a specific period). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to vest. The total amount
expensed is recognised over the vesting period, which
is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance sheet date,
the entity revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on non-marketing vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the profit and loss account
with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are

exercised.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, and
it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Provisions for restructuring comprise lease termination
penalties, employee termination payments and anticipated loss
on disposal of relevant assets. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.
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(r)

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow of economic resources will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations
as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligation may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of
applicable value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts
and after eliminating sales within the Group.

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured.

Revenue from sales of goods manufactured or traded is
recognised on the transfer of significant risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with the time when the
goods are delivered to customers and title has passed.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired,
the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted
at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and
continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loans is recognised using the original
effective interest rate.
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®
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Revenue recognition (continued)

Government incentives are recognised where there is
reasonable assurance that the incentives will be received and
all attaching conditions will be complied with.

Handling income is recognised when the services are
rendered.

Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance
with the substance of the relevant agreements.

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the periods of the leases.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations
engaged in providing products or services that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of other
business segments. A geographical segment is engaged in
providing products or services within a particular economic
environment that are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of segments operating in other economic
environments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting,
the Group has determined that the primary segment reporting
format is by business segment and the secondary segment
reporting format is by geographical segment.

Segment assets consist primarily of intangible assets, land use
rights, fixed assets, inventories, trade and other receivables,
deposits and prepayments and cash and cash equivalents.
Unallocated assets comprise interest in an associated company,
available-for-sale financial assets, deferred taxation and

derivative financial instruments.

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. Unallocated
liabilities comprise corporate liabilities and taxation.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to land use rights
and fixed assets.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the equity holders of the Company is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s accounts in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the board of directors
and the equity holders of the Company.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
exchange risk, cash flow interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group's overall risk management program focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Group
uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures
whenever necessary.

Risk management is carried out by the Group’s management under
policies approved by the board of directors. Management identifies,
evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group's operating units. The Board provides written principles for
overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific
areas, such as foreign exchange risk, cash flow interest rate risk,
credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and investing of
excess liquidity.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in China with transactions mainly
settled in Renminbi (RMB), Hong Kong dollar (HKD) and United
States dollar (USD). The Group is mainly exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from future commercial transactions
and recognised financial assets and liabilities denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
Group entities to which they relate and the Group manages
these exposures with foreign exchange forward contracts if
necessary.

The Group has certain investments in foreign operations,
whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency translation
risk. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the
Group's foreign operations is managed primarily through
borrowings denominated in the relevant foreign currencies.

The details of the currencies in which the Group’s bank loans
are denominated are set out in Note 26 to the accounts. Except
for certain USD bank loans drawn by the Group entities in
China, the Group’s bank loans are principally denominated
in the functional currency of the relevant Group entity and
in case of Group entities whose functional currency is HKD,
in either HKD or USD. Management does not anticipate any
significant foreign exchange risk associated with the Group’s
borrowings.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

62

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2008, the post-tax profit of the Group
would have been increased by approximately HK$55,000
(2007: HK$6,638,000) if RMB had strengthened by 5% against
HKD/USD mainly resulted from foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of HKD and USD denominated monetary assets
and liabilities with all other variables held constant.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk mainly
arising from short-term bank borrowings and overdrafts
bearing interest at floating rates. Management intends to draw
short-term bank loans as to increase flexibility in financing. The
Group will review whether bank loans bearing fixed or floating
rates should be drawn from time to time with reference to
the trend of changes in interest rates. The Group did not
enter into any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to
interest rate risks.

As at 31 December 2008, the post-tax profit of the Group
would have been decreased/increased by approximately
HK$2,707,000 (2007: HK$1,950,000) if the interest rates
had been increased/decreased by 100 basis points with all
other variables held constant.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to perform an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets (mainly
include other non-current assets, trade receivables, other
receivables, deposits and bank balances) as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet.

The majority of the Group’s trade and other receivables
arose from credit sales to customers. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual balance receivable at
each balance sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment

provision are made for irrecoverable amounts.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (continued)

Rental deposits are mainly placed with various landlords in
China and are due to refund upon the expiry of the tenancy
agreements and handover the leased premises. During the
year, the Group did not experience significant defaults by
the landlords.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited as the counterparties
are renowned financial institutions registered in Hong Kong,
China and Taiwan.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its
current obligations when they fall due.

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding to the liquidity structure
of the overall assets, liabilities, loans and commitments of the
Group. The Group also maintains a healthy level of liquid
assets and banking facilities to ensure the availability of
sufficient cash flows to meet any unexpected and material
cash requirements in the ordinary course of business. As at
31 December 2008, the Group has unutilised banking facilities
of HK$182,349,000 (2007: HK$257,152,000).

The contractual maturity of the Group’s current financial
liabilities based on the undiscounted cash flows is as follows:

Daphne International Holdings Limited
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Between Between
Within 3 3 and 6 6 months
months months and 1 year Total
=@AZE NMERZE
=EAR ~EA —F et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEIT T FHEIT FAETT
At 31 December 2008 AR=-ZEENF+=-H=+—H
Trade payables B 5 EFRM 397,006 - - 397,006
Other payables HAs IR 205,487 - - 205,487
Bank loans RITER 171,942 78,151 20,562 270,655
774,435 78,151 20,562 873,148
At 31 December 2007 R-ZZ+E+-A=+—8H
Trade payables B 5 ENERR 461,099 - - 461,099
Other payables HAth FETBR SR 163,893 - - 163,893
Bank loans IRITER 132,834 42,944 19,200 194,978
757,826 42,944 19,200 819,970
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(e)

Capital risk management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital risk management
is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratio in order to
support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
toit, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. There were no changes in the objectives,
policies or processes during the years ended 31 December
2008 and 31 December 2007.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
interest-bearing bank loans divided by equity attributable to
equity holders of the Company. The gearing ratios as at the
balance sheet dates were as follows:
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2008 2007

—EEN\F —TTtF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Interest-bearing bank loans TEIRITER 270,655 194,978

Equity attributable to equity RATERFFA ARG ER

holders of the Company 1,854,533 1,373,084

Gearing ratio BEHEREE ARG ERL X 14.6% 14.2%
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 4. EEGEFTRHAE

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based

on historical experience and other factors, including expectations

of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal

the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have

a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

discussed below.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
AR B B RE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of
the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows
(Note 15(a)).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

Depreciation and amortisation

Management determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation/amortiation charges for the Group's
fixed assets and intangible assets. Management will revise
the depreciation/amortisation charges where useful lives
are different to previously estimated, or it will write off or
write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold. Periodic review could result
in a change in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation/
amortisation expense in future periods.

Estimated write-downs of inventories to net realisable
value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of inventories.
Provisions are made for inventories where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
realised. The identification of obsolescence requires the use
of judgement and estimates. Where the exception is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact carrying
value of inventories and net realisable value for the periods
in which such estimate is changed.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by estimated discounted cash flow and makes
assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at
each balance sheet date. The fair value of foreigh exchange
forward contracts is determined using quoted forward
exchange rates at the balance sheet date.

The face values less any estimated credit adjustments for the
Group's financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than
one year, including bank balances and cash, pledged deposits,
trade receivables, other receivables, deposits, trade payables,
other payables, bank loans and overdrafts approximates their
fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate available to the
Group for similar financial instruments.

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
Turnover represents sales of footwear and accessories. The Group

is organised into two main business segments:

Brand business — Manufacturing and distribution of footwear,

apparel and accessories under own brands and licensed brands.

OEM business — Manufacturing and distribution of footwear under

original-equipment manufacturing arrangements (“OEM").
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5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. ¥ XZERSEER (&)

(a) Primary reporting format — business segments (a) EERHEEX -EBHE
There were no material transactions between the business BEBHEZAVEETENEARS -
segments.
2008 2007
—EENE s
Brand OEM Brand OEM
business  business Group business business Group
R [R3&

BERE  REXE ARE  @EXE REXRR A%HE
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TRR TAL TAL TR

Turnover LET 4,646,853 642,444 5,289,297 3,145,841 707,739 3,853,580
Segment results NEEE 682,908 19,972 702,880 481,890 38,141 520,031
Income derived from an =)

available-for-sale financial asset ~ HESLREEZ WA 3,000 3,000
Impairment loss on an HESHEE

available-for-sale financial asset ~ Jl{EE1E (4,000) -
Fair value adjustment on derivative $T4£&mTE

financial instruments AT EERE - 2,097
Unallocated income RN 1,553 23,277
Unallocated expenses FOEHY (24,453) (7.272)
Operating profit TERN 678,980 541,133
Segment assets NEEE 2,617,933 276,066 2,893,999 1,874,813 411,291 2,286,104
Interest in an associated company R —RE{ & AR 2 3,134 2,567
Available-for-sale financial assets A HHESRAE 33,624 33,624
Derivative financial instruments #7144 & T A - 2,450
Other unallocated assets HEAxNREE 31,604 37,156
Total assets BEE 2,962,361 2,361,901
Segment liabilities NEAR 776,020 115774 891,794 628,173 195859 824,032
Other unallocated liabilities HExAEERE 179,269 130,687
Total liabilities EER 1,071,063 954,719
Amortisation B 2,200 224 2,424 792 841 1,633
Depreciation e 103,327 11,553 114,880 82,990 11,962 94,952
Provision for bad and REREE

doubtful debts - 3,721 3,721 - - -
Provision for/(write-back of) BEEERE/

slow-moving inventories (Bm) 5,702 (3,222) 2,480 (5,328) (1,110) (6,438)
Capital expenditure BARY 222,764 11,563 234,327 156,818 32,229 189,047
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5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. #XIERoEER(E)

(b) Secondary reporting format - geographical segments (b) REHHEFX -2 E
REBzmBEBRPERERAES
EopRREBREEXEBMS - ARERT
BIARPEAE  WHEEREREETEE
IRERZBINEP - DEEEEIRE

The Group’s brand business operates in Mainland China
and Taiwan. For OEM business, the Group manufactures in
China and sells its footwear products to overseas customers
mainly in the US. Segment turnover is presented based on

the geographical location of customers.

BEPZFHEHEEZT -

2008 2007

—ZEN\F ZETLF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FHETT

Mainland China aIEipN 173 4,600,930 3,115,651
The US EE 600,244 635,552
Others Hih 88,123 102,377
5,289,297 3,853,580

Since over 90% of the Group’s assets are located in Mainland

China, no segment assets and segment capital expenditure

BN AEEBBI0% 2 EEMNPEX
= BRABEINDBEERDBERHH

are presented. & o
OTHER INCOME ETTON
2008 2007
—EENEF ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FATT
Government incentives BT B 4,730 4,866
Income derived from an KERHE

available-for-sale SREEZWA
financial asset (Note 21(a)(i)) (FFEE21(a))) 3,000 3,000
Interest income F B A 2,715 4,413
Handling income FEBEBWA 1,920 1,110
Tax refund on reinvestment BEREZRB 1,345 23,055
Royalty income HEERA 932 385
Gross rental income HeW AL 599 355
Dividend income A& BUA 10 44
Others EHh 5,487 2,602
20,738 39,830
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8RB MiaE
7. OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS - NET 7 EHi(BE)WE-FEHE
2008 2007
—ZEZENF —ETAF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET R
Fair value gain on derivative TEERIAZ

financial instruments NEEERR - 2,097
Impairment loss on an

available-for-sale financial asset HESmMEEREBE (4,000) -
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—KMBARZEIE (3.417) -
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBRTEEZEE (20,235) (7,835)
Loss on disposal of land use rights I i AR 2 518 (90) -
Net exchange gain M 5 W s F 5E 1,785 14,415

(25,957) 8,677
8. OPERATING PROFIT 8. REBF
Operating profit is stated after charging the following: KERNE R TS IE

2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FA&TT
Amortisation of land use rights T b s R S 1,032 1,633
Amortisation of a license right FERT S PR 3R 1,392 -
Auditors’ remuneration AT e 3,663 3,616

Cost of inventories sold including ELFERABERIEFERB

provision for slow-moving 2,480,000 (= EEL5F -

inventories of HK$2,480,000 1 516,438,0007% 1)

(2007: write-back of HK$6,438,000) 2,092,146 1,646,297
Depreciation of fixed assets BT &EEITE 114,880 94,952
Employee benefits expense (Note 14) EERNFZ (H5E14) 614,013 466,558
Operating lease rentals (including THIRETF 2L E

concessionaire fees) in respect HEH2(RERS

of land and buildings R HER) 1,014,450 730,171
Provision for bad and doubtful debts RERBE 3,721 -

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. HEMA
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts BITERRBEZ ZFE 12,234 11,341
Interest on license fees payable (Note 30) JEfTHEFEFHEEAEFE (KizE30) 1,073 -
13,307 11,341
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10. TAXATION 10. #HiE
The amount of taxation charged/(credited) to the consolidated profit BirA BRI (GTA) ZHIEE

and loss account represents:

2008 2007
—EENEF ZETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FA&TT
Current taxation WITHIA
Taxation outside Hong Kong BB AN R 2 I8 153,805 148,328
Under/(over) provision in prior years BEFERETR (BEEE) 9,144 (5,796)
Deferred taxation (Note 29) RIEFLIE (MI7E29) 6,141 (1,234)
169,090 141,298
The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical NEBEBEBRT A BN 2 BIERBRERARE
amount that would arise using the applicable domestic tax rates EERCEAEMHEMAE 2 BmiiiE =
of the Group entities as follows: BT -
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Profit before taxation B AT & F 666,267 530,018
Less: Share of profit of an associated company & : JE{h— B & R F&F| (594) (226)
665,673 529,792
Tax calculated at domestic tax REBERHEELERT
rates applicable to profits in BMRAZEMBERTE 2
the respective countries/places AL 141,077 156,265
Income not subject to taxation BAGBUA (23,209) (28,044)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes AT 32,985 13,861
Deferred tax assets previously not MBI ARMER R
recognised MIBEAE - (4,584)
Tax losses for which no deferred RIERIBERIBEE 2
tax assets recognised TIBEE 8,600 10,021
Utilisation of previously BRBERERZ
unrecognised tax losses RIgEE (117) (3,341)
Under/(over) provision in prior years BAEFERBTR (BEREE) 9,144 (5,796)
Difference in deferred tax assets/liabilities REREBATEEIREL
arising from changes in tax rates BIEAE,BE2ES - 2,145
Derecognition of previously RIEERATEERZ
recognised tax losses TIEEE 476 -
Temporary differences not recognised RIERE =58 134 771
Taxation charge HES 169,090 141,298
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 21% (2007: 29%). IEFBAKREA21%(ZTZEF 1 29%) ©
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the AR AEB LT BN ME ST ERTAT - %
accounts as the Group does not have any assessable profit arising WK B AEEEAFETEE - B8N
in Hong Kong. Taxation on profits arising outside Hong Kong has (@2 BRI R RRE N FTERTAR] - A
been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at EEMEBMTER tE 2 BRITHETE -

the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries/places in which
the Group operates.
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11.

12.

13

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Provision for China corporate income tax was calculated based on
the statutory tax rate of 25% (2007: 33%) on the assessable income
of each of the Group's entities except that certain subsidiaries of the
Company operating in China are eligible for certain tax exemptions
and concessions including tax holiday and reduced corporate income
tax rate during the year. Accordingly, the China corporate income
tax for such subsidiaries has been provided for after taking into
account of these tax exemptions and concessions.

Daphne International Holdings Limited
3R Annual Report 2008

10. BiE (&)

REERE MBW$$@ﬁT
PMUAIEEFE25% (ZFFLF : 33%)5
HEE MAAREREEEZE THEAR
CERZEETHERERER  BIERHE
RERNBELCEMSHE - At - LEHER
Az BEMEMEHRER ML EHERE X
TR B E LB o

88 40 JE R

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE  11. XA RIEHFHE ABGERER
COMPANY
The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with RARFEREAREBEZARAERFTAEA
in the accounts of the Company to the extent of HK$70,338,000 &5 & F A70,338,0008 t( —Z B Z + F:
(2007: HK$84,285,000). 84,285,000/ 7T) °
DIVIDENDS 12. RE
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FAETT
Interim dividend, paid,of HK2.5 cents BT AR S m AR A% 2. 578 1L
(2007: HK2.5 cents) per ordinary share (ZZEZTEF 2581 40,947 40,947
Final dividend, proposed, of HK3.0 cents FR R B AR B A AR 3.078 (1L
(2007: HK2.5 cents) per ordinary share (ZZEZEF 2581 49,137 40,947
90,084 81,894

At a meeting held on 16 April 2009, the Board proposed a final
dividend of HK3.0 cents per share in respect of the year ended
31 December 2008 to be approved by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The proposed dividend is
not reflected as a dividend payable in these accounts but will be
reflected as an appropriation of retained profits for the year ending
31 December 2009.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of earnings per share is based on the Group’s profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$492,920,000
(2007: HK$384,383,000) and 1,637,892,384 (2007: 1,637,892,384)
ordinary shares in issue throughout the year.

SHOEBOXE@

13.

\ZEZNFHA+RARTzgZ L BF
EERRREERRAFAS LI EREBE
TENFT A=+ —BHIEFERERAR
BER3.0E - thZERENIEE AL TFIE
RS - ERIERE—_TTAF+ A=
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\I B %

BRER
BREFDIBBEARA RSB ABEAEER
#1492,920,000/% 7t ( = F T+ 4 : 384,383,000
BT M ANBBEITE@A%1,637,892,3848% (=
TE4F 1 1,637,892,3840%)51E -
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 13. ERERI (&)
Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2008 HREEZZTTNF+A=T—HRZZZE
and 31 December 2007 are the same as basic earnings per share +tF T ZA=T—HBLEFEARRRHRITERE
since the exercise price of the Company’s outstanding share options [REZTEERRARRRG 2 FHHE -
was higher than the average market price of the Company’s shares UL EREE 2T RERERBTER -

during the years.

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14. EERFIBX
Employee benefits expense including directors’ emoluments EERMNFAZ(BIEESIE)IE
represents:
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT FATT
Wages, salaries and bonuses TITH& - He kit 580,526 434,700
Defined contribution pension costs (Note (a)) EREMEFEAEAA (H5E@)) 33,487 20,066
Share-based payment expenses LARGAD BT 2 FRIBR X - 11,792
614,013 466,558
(a) Defined contribution pension costs (a) EEMFCERAKERA

As at both 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007, no
forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future.

Contributions payable to the funds as at 31 December 2008

of approximately HK$3,120,000 (2007: HK$1,650,000) are
included in other payables and accrued charges.
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14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 14. EERAFEX(H)
(b) Directors’ emoluments (b) EEM<
The remuneration of each director of the Company for the RBEZZZENF+ZA=1+T—HLHF
year ended 31 December 2008 is set out below: B RRBEZEFZEHHOT -
Defined
contribution
pension Discretionary
Fees Salaries costs bonuses Total
EH
MERIK
s e EAD TN B1ETEAL st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FETT FE T FHET FE T
Name of director EEHE
Mr Chen Ying-Chieh PRI A 840 3,175 30 2,000 6,045
Mr Chen Hsien Min PRE R ST E 480 3,536 6 2,000 6,022
Mr Chang Chih-Kai REILE 480 1,532 10 1,000 3,022
Mr Hsiao Hsi-Ming FRBAST A 72 - - - 72
Mr Huang Shun-Tsai =ER e 72 - - - 72
Mr Kuo Jung-Cheng PSR4 72 - - - 72
2,016 8,243 46 5,000 15,305
The remuneration of each director of the Company for the REBEE_ZTZELF+_A=+T—HBILtF
year ended 31 December 2007 is set out below: B ARRIZESZHMAT :
Defined Share-
contribution based
pension payment
Fees Salaries costs expenses Total
ERR LA A%
HFERIK REMH 2
e i EAD RN IR fEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
Name of director EENE
Mr Chen Ying-Chieh PRI A - 1,283 33 1,427 2,743
Mr Chen Hsien Min RER &L - 1,438 - 1,256 2,694
Mr Chang Chih-Kai R A - 762 - 1,427 2,189
Mr Hsiao Hsi-Ming RS 72 - - - 72
Mr Huang Shun-Tsai =RET S 72 - - - 72
Mr Kuo Jung-Cheng PERHR A 72 - - - 72
216 3,483 33 4,110 7,842
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14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 14. EERAFEX(H)
(c) Five highest paid individuals () EREBEHFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in RAFE  AEERAERaHATRE=
the Group for the year include three (2007: three) directors H(ZETLF =R)EF - HWSFE
whose emoluments are presented above. The emoluments EREXHTE FRENSIMA(ZE
payable to the remaining two (2007: two) individuals during THF - MB)ATZBSFBOT ¢

the year are as follows:

2008 2007

—ZEENF —ETAF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

Salaries and bonuses e RIELT 1,714 623
Defined contribution pension costs 2B HFURIK SRR 51 38
Share-based payment expenses LARRAD A B 2 FRIB R - 2,397
1,765 3,058

The emoluments fell within the following bands: Bi4ARAT -

Number of individuals

AE

2008 2007
—EEN\F —TTHF

Emolument bands B & 48 7

HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 07870% 1,000,000/ 7T 2 -

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 0% 1,500,000/ 7T - 1

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 722,000,000/ 7T - 1
No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors AEETEAEZTX G TALTZMN
or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join ERIBE - ERWEIBEMAREE - 3
or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of ERMARE B 2 SZEN BB E - F
office. No directors or the five highest paid individuals waived N SEEX LTI AT ERES
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the year. FEERELAME -
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. BEEE

Group
AEH
Goodwill License right Total
GRS SR ARE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FAET
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
(Fff5E(a)) (FIEE(b))
Cost KAME
At 1 January 2007 RZZEZ+F—H—H 25,483 - 25,483
Acquisition of additional g1 YN od
interests in subsidiaries FHIME R 202 - 202
At 31 December 2007 RZEZ+F+ZA=+—H 25,685 - 25,685
Additions "E - 15,154 15,154
_At31December2008 = R=TEN\F+=A=t—-H 25685 15154 40,839 _
Accumulated amortisation BT
At 1 January 2007 and RZZEZLF-—HA—AK
31 December 2007 —EEEF+ZA=+—H - - -
Amortisation for the year AEEHEH - 1,392 1,392
_At31December 2008 = RW=FENFET=A=t—-RH T B2 1392
Net book value BREFE
At 31 December 2008 R-ZBEN\F+-A=+—H 25,685 13,762 39,447
At 31 December 2007 RZEZ+EFE+-A=+—H 25,685 - 25,685
Notes: e
(a)  Goodwill (a) P

Goodwill is allocated to the Group'’s various cash-generating units (“CGUs")
identified according to operating segment. The Group performs impairment
tests on goodwill annually, or more frequently if there is any indication that
it may be impaired, by comparing the recoverable amount to the carrying
amount as at the balance sheet date. The recoverable amount of a CGU
was determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations used
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a three-year period. The pre-tax discount rate and the estimated
weighted average annual sales growth rate after the 3-year budgeted period
applied to the cash flow projections was 10% and ranged from 1% to 2%
respectively. The budgeted gross profit margin and net profit margin were
determined by the management for each individual CGU based on past
performance and its expectations for market development. Management
believes that any reasonably foreseeable change in any of the above key
assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed
the recoverable amount significantly.
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 15. BEREEE)
Notes: (continued) BisE - (48)
(b) License right (b) HFETEEFAMRE
In 2008, the Group acquired a license right for the exclusive distribution RZTTNF  AEEREHFEAEBRRIEH
of an international brand in Mainland China. License right was recognised E— BRI 2 AT E AR - TR AENRFG R
based on a discount rate approximated the Group’s weighted average cost MiEEAEENETEHESKAEE 2 FIHRE
of capital of 10% per annum at the date of inception. 10% &R °
16. LAND USE RIGHTS 16. LifEFAE
Group
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Cost PRAE
At 1 January m—H—H 56,979 43,082
Exchange adjustment M H 2,977 3,503
Additions = 4,506 10,394
Disposals HE (1,016) -
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—KME QA (1,354) -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 62,092 56,979
Accumulated amortisation RETEH
At 1 January m—H—H 16,088 13,793
Exchange adjustment M 54,5 2 504 662
Amortisation for the year I T 1,032 1,633
Disposals HeE (321) -
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—KMERE (155) -
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 17,148 16,088
Net book value BREFE
At 31 December R+=—HA=+—8 44,944 40,891
At 1 January n—H—H 40,891 29,289

As at both 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007, all land
use rights were held outside Hong Kong on leases of between 10

to 50 years.
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17. FIXED ASSETS 17. BEEE
Group
r5E
Furniture,
Leasehold  Leasehold Construction-  Plantand fixtures and Motor
buildings improvements in-progress  machinery  equipment vehicles Total
BE
HE BE  BETE%E
HERF  YREE  ERIE RH#H KRR "E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TAT TAEL TAEL TAL TET TAEL
Cost RAE
At 1 January 2007 RZFZtF—-A—AH 159,237 171,343 75,024 118,857 78,013 28,521 630,995
Exchange adjustment BN A% 12,492 12,632 5,886 9,987 5,142 2,181 48,320
Additions NE 51,065 85,774 29,260 11,472 19,177 5253 202,001
Transfer b 14,898 - (14,898) - - - -
Disposals HE - (20,107) - (961) (890) (1,976) (23,934)
At 31 December 2007 RZEZ+EF-A=Z+—-H 237,69 249,642 95,272 139,355 101,442 33,979 857,382
Exchange adjustment ERAE 12,088 12,137 4,845 1,517 4,467 1,658 42,7112
Additions wE 3,104 106,180 79,651 8,136 26,343 6,407 229,821
Transfer H 33,767 - (33,767) - - - -
Disposals HE (8,703) (36,108) - (2,443) (2,798) (1,971) (52,023)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHBAR (29,896) - (113) (16,103) (826) (787) (47,725)
At 31 December 2008 RZBENE+ZA=+-H 248,052 331,851 145,888 136,462 128,628 39,286 1,030,167
Accumulated depreciation  2:HTE
At 1 January 2007 e s =] 37,106 74,240 - 94,582 30,084 16,407 252,419
Exchange adjustment B AR 3,194 8,189 - 8,577 2,538 1,441 23,939
Charge for the year KEEWE 6,700 60,422 - 9,419 13,016 5,395 94,952
Disposals HE - (11,477) - (956) (701) (1,159) (14,293)
At 31 December 2007 RZEZLEF-A=+—H 47,000 131,374 - 111,622 44,937 22,084 357,017
Exchange adjustment ERAE 2,447 6,605 - 6,210 2,065 1,058 18,385
Charge for the year KEENE 13,164 66,752 - 9,877 19,549 5,538 114,880
Disposals HE (4.304) (12,467) - (1,844) (1,7139) (1,783) (22,137)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—KHKBAR (1,892) - - (9,906) 317 (538) (12,713)
At31December 2008  W-FEAFT-A=+-A 56415 192,264 - 115959 64,435 26359 455432
Net book value FHTE
At 31 December 2008 ~ R=FFBNF+ZA=+—-H 191,637 139,587 145,888 20,503 64,193 12,927 574,735
At 31 December 2007 RZZZLFEFZA=+—H 190,692 118,268 95,272 27,133 56,505 11,895 500,365
As at 31 December 2008, leasehold buildings of carrying value RZZEZEENF+ZA=Z+—H  KEHE

of HK$32,548,000 (2007: HK$21,685,000) were pledged for the
Group's short-term bank loans (Note 26).
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

18. RMBARZRE

Company
b/
2008 2007
—EENEF T LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Unlisted investments, at cost JEEMIRE - WA E 165,635 165,635
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December TREWR_ZEZNGF+_A=T—HZEZE
2008: BB AT :
Place of Particulars
incorporation/ of issued/paid- Interest  Principal
Name operation up capital held activities
B3ty BRIT/HRE
1 SE R BAFEE s TEER
%
Alldevelop Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 each 100 Investment holding
RBREIHE 1REREEIET BEER
Z B
Dafu Footwear Co., Ltd. Mainland China US$3,180,000 90  Manufacture of footwear
Hanjiang Putian City @
BRMRIAEEEZERAF H B 3,180,000% 7T BUEEEER
Dasheng Footwear Co., Ltd. Mainland China US$4,285,700 100  Manufacture of footwear
Putian City ®
BERMEIAREXERARO alEipN 4,285,700 70 BUEEEER
Daphne Marketing Co., Ltd. Taiwan NTD200,000,000 100 Retail distribution of
footwear and accessories
BT ESRODBBAF = 200,000,000%7 & % TENHEBER R
Daxin Footwear Co., Ltd. Mainland China US$2,522,372 100 Processing of footwear
Putian City ®
ERMEIAMEXERATO alEipN 2,522,372%7C MITEEED
Daxing Shoe Material Co., Ltd. Mainland China US$1,499,925 100  Manufacture of footwear

Hanjiang Putian City ©
BHMEIREENERARY
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18. RMIB AT ZRE (&)

Place of Particulars
incorporation/ of issued/paid- Interest  Principal
Name operation up capital held activities
KL BRI/ HRE
L EEWE RAFEE iRz EEER
%
Gentlefit Trading Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 100  Export trading of footwear,
of HK$1 each; investment and
13,055,667 non-voting trademarks holding
deferred shares of
HK$1 each @
HHESERAA B 100 R EE HEEMNOES
VBT L@k REREERER
13,055,667 X F R E(E
AT BREERTRY
Jacaranda International Limited British Virgin Islands 2 shares of 100  Export trading of footwear
US$1 each
ABELES 2R EREEIETZBRG ENEMHEOES
Jiangxi Dachuan Footwear Mainland China US$1,400,000 100  Processing of footwear
Co., Ltd. ®@
IEANNEERR AR B AR 1,400,000% 7T MIEFER
Modern City Development Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 100 Investment holding
Limited of HK$1 each; 10,000
non-voting deferred
shares of HK$1 each @
RAERARLDE 5 100 BREE AT REER
2 EEMR ¢ 10,000
BREE1IETZ
BRERRLTR
Prime Success (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands 5,000,000 shares 100  Investment holding
of US$0.01 each
ABELES 5,000,000/ &% REER
EE0.01E T 2R 1D
Putian Hanjiang Footwear Mainland China US$6,000,000 75  Manufacture of footwear
Co., Ltd. @
BHMRIEEXARAR JEIPNGS 6,000,000 7T SLEEEER
Shanghai Guang Wei Industry Mainland China US$4,600,000 87.8  Manufacture of footwear
& Commerce Co., Ltd. @
LERBEXFERAFC JEIPNGS 4,600,000 7T SLEEEER
Shoebox Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 95  Trademarks holding
shares of HK$1 each
EEERAR AR BE 10,0008 &% HERE
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18. AMIBARIZKRE (&)

Place of Particulars
incorporation/ of issued/paid- Interest  Principal
Name operation up capital held activities
MR BRT/BR
£8 EEME RAFEE ks FEER
%
Taizhou Rong Wei Shoes Mainland China US$1,000,000 100  Processing of footwear
Co. Ltd. ©
FNREBEERRLQT SAICTPNE: 1,000,000% 7T MIEHER
Victoria Success Investment Mainland China US$30,000,000 100 Distribution of footwear
Co., Ltd. ® and accessories and
investment holding
KBEHRE (RE) BRAFY H B R 30,000,000% 7T DiEEEER R
Fo g R 3% B 1R
Victoria Success (Shanghai) Mainland China Us$23,000,000 100 Manufacture of footwear
Limited ®
KBEX (LB) BRARY SAICTPN: 23,000,000 7T SUEERER
Victoria Success Shoes (Sugian) Mainland China RMB3,000,000 100  Processing of footwear
Co. Ltd. ©
KBEX (BB) BRARY SAICTPN: 3,000,000 A R # MIEHER
Winson Union Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary 100 Investment holding
shares of HK$1 each
KEHARLRF 5 10,000 & EE REZR
TATZERR
Yangzhou Quanwei Industry & Mainland China Us$700,570 100  Processing of footwear
Commerce Co., Ltd. ®
BNEEELZRRRFY H B R 700,570% 7T MITEEEmR
EEMEARAR® Mainland China RMB50,000,000 95  Distribution of footwear,
apparel and accessories
CHETPN 3 50,000,000 A DiEEEER R KA
BEBREERRR® Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100 Distribution of footwear,
apparel and accessories
H B R 50,000,000 A DIEEEER R KA
2EHEBE(LE)BRAR® Mainland China RMB600,000 100  Distribution of footwear,
apparel and accessories
GHETPN 3 600,000 A DiEEEER R KA
=BHE(LE)RAT © Mainland China RMB5, 118,825 100  Distribution of footwear,
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

18. REEARZRE (&)

Daphne International Holdings Limited
3R Annual Report 2008

Notes: B E

(a)  These Companies were established in China in the form of equity joint (@) ZERAAABRPBERIZEELE
ventures.

(b)  These Companies were established in China in the form of wholly foreign- (b) ZERARABRRERLZEINERE -
owned enterprises.

(c)  Other than investment in Prime Success (BVI) Limited which is held directly (c) R ASA Bl EE A Prime Success (BVI) Limited 2 #%
by the Company, all subsidiaries shown above are held indirectly by the BHN o FRIFREEMHB AR 2B HRAA TR
Company. BREA -

(d)  The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no rights to dividends, nor (d) ERZEELERHER FEZNREBARZKE
rights to receive notice, nor rights to attend and vote at any general meeting SEUZAREABRRASBEEREFERREASL
of the respective companies, nor rights to participate in any distribution RELRE - REBRARBRENERLB (T[S
on winding up. K °

(e)  None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of () BHWBRRNFERKFRNIMEFMBETARER
the year or at any time during the year. BRES

19. AMOUNT DUE FROM A SUBSIDIARY - COMPANY 19.
The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and

Bl —XHEARERR—AAH
YW —KMEABIFIELEER 28 WA
repayable on demand. TEESEE -

20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATED COMPANY 20. R—XEE QT ZER

Group
REE
2008 2007
—EBENE TTTAF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
Share of net assets JEREEFE 3,134 2,567
Unlisted investment, at cost JELETIRE - HERAE 2,340 2,340

Details of the associated company as at 31 December 2008 are RZZZNEF+_A=+—H B2 QRIZF

as follows: B
Place of Particulars Interest
incorporation/ of paid-up held  Principal
Name operation capital indirectly  activity
A HERK BiEEE
=L EiE F#15 2R TEEYR
%
Dayong Shoe Material Mainland China RMB5,457,000 30  Manufacture of shoe materials
Co., Ltd.Hanjiang
Putian City ("Dayong”)
BERETRIAKEERR LN 5,457,000 AR # SLEEERYE
RAIAK])
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20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATED COMPANY (CONTINUED) 20. A—REi& Qa2 fEwm (])
BANT B ERBENT ¢

A summary of financial information of the associated company is

as follows:
2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FABT
Assets BE 11,173 9,389
Liabilities af& 1,163 943
Revenues WA 13,032 11,323
Profit el 1,979 754
21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 21. AIHESRMEE
Group
TEE
2008 2007
—EENEF ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Unlisted investments (Note (a)) JELETIRE (MiFE@)) 33,624 33,624
Listed securities (Note (b)) FhES (KiFE(b)) - -
33,624 33,624
Notes: MIEE
(@)  Unlisted investments comprise investment in Jingxing Shoe Industrial Co., @ FLETREREAREHTRICEEHEXAR

2 Al & £ ]) 33,000,000 T( =TT+ F :
33,000,000/ 7T) Z I E R ABEMBR LA (K
2]) 624,000 T(ZZEZ+4F | 624,00087T) 2
BE ARAEFCREBRARSREBUPRFEX
2% Gt FELEMIRE AFEE - RZETNF+
ZRA=+—H  BUBRXMGEMESEETHE "
AHATEERERLEEE -

Ltd. Putian City ("Jingxing”) of HK$33,000,000 (2007: HK$33,000,000) and
investment in Daen Shoe Material Co. Ltd. (“Daen”) of HK$624,000 (2007:
HK$624,000). The fair values of the unlisted investments are estimated by
the directors of the Company based on projected cash flow discounted at
an annual rate of 12%. As at 31 December 2008, a valuation on Jingxing
was performed by an independent professional appraiser with a fair value
approximated the directors’ estimation.

() Investment in Jingxing () REEZRE

REERFEEE30%#am - @ERNPEK
YZHINEERE  KEFHE-NAN—F
T AR REIT0F - @R XK AEE
RO HEREm ©

The Group holds 30% interest in Jingxing which is a sino-foreign equity
joint venture established in China for a term of 70 years commencing
November 1991. Jingxing is engaged in the manufacturing and

distribution of footwear.

HREZRRARETEHSEZMBERE
BRRTHEATEN REETEHETE
RAREEZBERE -

The directors do not consider Jingxing as an associated company of
the Group as they are of the opinion that the Group cannot exercise
significant influence in the financial and operational decisions of

Jingxing.
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21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

0]

(i)

Investment in Jingxing (continued)

In 2006, the Group entered into an agreement (the “Agreement”)
with an affiliate of (the “Guarantor”) one of the shareholders of
Jingxing whereby in return for a minimum annual payment of
HK$3,000,000 by the Guarantor for each of the three years ended
31 December 2008, the Group agreed to surrender its right to the
share of any profit in Jingxing for the corresponding period. By virtue
of the Agreement, the amount receivable by the Group from the
Guarantor for the year ended 31 December 2008 is HK$3,000,000
(2007: HK$3,000,000) which has been recognised in the profit and
loss account.

In 2008, the Group renewed the Agreement for a minimum annual
payment of HK$3,000,000 by the Guarantor for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2011 with all other terms and conditions
being unchanged.

During the year, a loss of HK$4,000,000 was transferred from the
fair value adjustment reserve to the profit and loss account upon
impairment of the investment in Jingxing anticipated by the directors.

Investment in Daen
The Group holds 16% interest in Daen which is an equity joint

venture established in China. Daen is engaged in the manufacturing
and distribution of footwear in China.

(b)  Asat 31 December 2008, the Group holds approximately 14.4% interest in
Sun Home Leather Corporation Limited (“Sun Home"), a company engaged
in the manufacturing and trading of leather materials.

Sun Home was delisted from the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation and
authorised to be traded on Over-The-Counter market in 2001. The directors
considered that the fair value of the investment in Sun Home was negligible
since there were no transactions of shares of Sun Home during the year.

21. AH
WigE :

Daphne International Holdings Limited
3R Annual Report 2008

ESMEEH)
()
i) HERZRE(E

RITTRFE AEERAGEHFP —ZRE
2 AR(THERRADT LB HE]) -
BIERAEGE REBEE-ZTN\F+=
A=+ BLE=AFESFINIRELTE
3,000,000/ 7T + BN 5 [ [F) B A EE R B 5
SRR ZHET - BERSE  RBEZZZT
NE+ZA=+—ALFE  AEERER
AFT15 2 FEW KT8 53,000,000 0( Z T
£ 4F : 3,000,000 7T) W B Ewm & E

Bl
s ©

RZTTNF  RNEBETHE - BEER
AN RBRE-T——F+-_A=+—H
IE= 1A E & F % 5% K & #83,000,000/%
TT v BTA H AR R AR R -

FRBEFTRPINESEZREGHBRIE -
#1%4,000,000/8 7T 2 E518 t 2 F B (E 38 B
(EE YN EE.

(i) MRBZEE

AEERFAERBI6%Em » REARFERK
YZBBERE NTERERERDHESR
=R E

RZBZNF+ A=+ HAKERERBERRE
PR BBR AR ([ R$8 DA14.4%H5 o WiE2 ¥75
REERBEBEMEMH

RITE—F  HBEABBFZIMKE  WE
REEGIZHTHHEITRS - EERR - ARE
BRORFALERERS B HBZEREZR
FEERNK

The investment in Sun Home has been pledged to a bank to secure the R IRESERTRT - ERERKERHRT
Group's short-term bank loans (Note 26). B2 ER M (EE26) ©
22. INVENTORIES 22. &
Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENEF T LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FABTT
Raw materials R 44,932 67,204
Work-in-progress TS 53,661 75,765
Finished goods IR an 1,256,687 849,082
1,355,280 992,051

Inventories are stated net of provisions
HK$59,576,000 (2007: HK$54,422,000) as at 31

2008.

for obsolescence of
December

SHOEBOXE@

R-ZEENF+_A=Z+—Bz2HFECHBRE
17 B ABR59,576,0008 T ( — T E+H4F ¢
54,422,000/ 7C) °
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. ES5ERWR
Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLEF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Trade receivables B 5 IR K 166,688 155,062
Less: Provision for impairment of receivables B FEUGBR RURE EHE (3,721) -
Trade receivables — net B 5 R ER— 58 162,967 155,062
Movement of provision for impairment of trade receivables is as S RW RO ERE 2 ZEEINNT :
follows:
Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENFE ZETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FATT
At 1 January wn—H—H - 177
Provision for impairment B R 3,721 -
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible F R EEZIE AT [E]
2 FEUARTR = (177)
At 31 December WR+=—A=+—H 3,721 -
The ageing analysis of trade receivables by invoice date is as REZHHFEZEHRBETRRSTAT
follows:
Group
TEE
2008 2007
—ZEEZN\F —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
0 - 30 days 0&30H 152,548 107,125
31 - 60 days 31£260H 4,642 30,339
61 - 90 days 61%290H 2,105 8,787
91 - 120 days 91£120H 1,468 4,250
121 - 180 days 121£180H 1,394 2,936
181 — 360 days 181£360H 461 1,419
Over 360 days 3608 M £ 349 206
162,967 155,062
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23. EZEUSR(HE)

As at 31 December 2008, trade receivables of HK$140,201,000 RZZEZENF+_A=Z+—8 EFEKER

(2007: HK$124,739,000) were neither past due nor impaired. These
related to a number of independent customers for whom there
was no relevant history of default. The ageing analysis of trade
receivables by past due date is as follows:

140,201,000/ 7t( = F F £ 4 : 124,739,000
AL RBARHBERE - ZFHBEDERZ
BV BRI ZBULES - RBME N 2 E
ZEBIRFRE DT

Group

rEE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET FAETT
Not past due i) A< 481 B 140,201 124,739
1 - 30 days past due A EA1ZE30H 15,442 13,759
31 - 60 days past due #mHA31E60H 2,635 8,967
61 - 90 days past due #1612 90H 2,049 4,560
91 - 120 days past due #A91E120H 967 1,105
121 - 180 days past due #mHf121=180H 864 1,163
181 — 360 days past due #HEI1812360H 460 564
Over 360 days past due #EA360H M + 349 205
162,967 155,062

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are denominated in the

following currencies:

BHRWERRZEmMEATIIEEEE

Group

REE
2008 2007
—EENE ZETEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FETT
Renminbi AR 120,567 104,907
US dollar E 41,645 49,762
New Taiwan dollar e 755 393
162,967 155,062

The carrying value of trade receivables approximated its fair value.
The Group generally allows an average credit period of 30 to 60 days
to its trade customers other than major and long standing customers
with whom specific extended terms will be agreed between the
Group and the relevant counter parties.

SHOEBOXE@

BEHEWERZ REEREAFEEES - K
SE-RETEBEETPFII30E60RFEH
HETERERREPZEIEREREHAHAE
BEAEEPEITIE
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. BERREEEY
Group Company
rEE ¥INNE|
2008 2007 2008 2007
—E2ENFE —2TtF ZBENFE —TT+HF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FAET FE T FAT
Cash at banks and in hand WITEREFERS 147,962 172,340 138 178
Deposits with banks within —EAREIEZ
three months of maturity RITIFER - 9,352 - -
147,962 181,692 138 178
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are denominated ReRRSFEYWZREEN T ESEHE:
in the following currencies:
Group Company
rEE AT
2008 2007 2008 2007

—2TNE —TTLHF ZBENFE —TTLH
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

FHET FHETT FHET FAIT
Renminbi ARE 123,480 135,991 - -
US dollar ETT 20,284 41,267 - -
New Taiwan dollar ek 3,196 3,870 = -
Hong Kong dollar BT 553 462 138 178
Euro B 7 449 102 - -
147,962 181,692 138 178
25. TRADE PAYABLES 25. EFENRR
The ageing analysis of trade payables including trade balances due REZHHFE 2 E S EMNRR (B IERET B
to related parties (Note 34(a)) by invoice date is as follows: 2B S (Mi5E34()) ) BREE DTN T ¢
Group
REE
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
0 - 30 days 0%30H 166,462 367,157
31 - 60 days 31%260H 116,134 59,580
61 - 90 days 61%90H 94,624 18,095
91 - 120 days 91%2120H 8,758 5,827
121 - 180 days 1212180H 1,424 2,376
181 — 360 days 1812360H 4,723 4,450
Over 360 days 360H A 4,881 3,614
397,006 461,099
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26. BANK LOANS 26. BITEX

Group

rEH
2008 2007
—EENEF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T

Bank loans HRITER
— Secured (Note (b)) — BHEA (D)) 92,542 68,810
- Unsecured — AR 178,113 126,168
270,655 194,978
The carrying amounts of the bank loans are denominated in the IRITERZ BREEN T EBEHE !
following currencies

Group

rEE
2008 2007
—EBEN\E —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FATT
Hong Kong dollar BT 148,542 100,076
Renminbi AR 74,461 42,944
UsS dollar ET 29,571 30,010
New Taiwan dollar e 18,081 21,948
270,655 194,978

Notes:

As at both 31 December 2008 and 2007, all the Group’s bank loans
were repayable within one year and the carrying value of bank loans
approximated its fair value.

As at 31 December 2008, the Group's secured short-term bank loans were
secured by certain leasehold buildings (Note 17) and listed securities of Sun
Home classified under available-for-sale financial assets with nil (2007: nil)
carrying value (Note 21(b)).

The weighted average effective interest rate of bank loans as at 31
December 2008 is 3.54% (2007: 4.87%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2008, the Company has given guarantees to various
banks to secure general banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries
amounting to HK$285,550,000 (2007: HK$285,550,000). As at 31
December 2008, the utilised amount of such facilities covered by the
Company’s guarantees was HK$170,892,000 (2007: HK$99,256,000).

SHOEBOXE@

MEE

RZBEN\FRZZFTLFF+ZA=+—10 K&
EZARTERYER—FAREER  mMEAES
HAFEEES -

RZZZENF+ZA=+—H  AEEZHEMR
TERBETHERF(MH17) BB/ LE
CREEZREEAT(ZTELF  T)NWEL
MR E B (HIFE21(0)) EHE o

RZZZNF+-A=+—0  RITERZMEF
BB REREH3.54%( ZFFHF 1 487%) °

RZZBZENFF+ZA=+—8 ARAHRETHE
NAER —ARIRITRRE 285,550,000/ (=T T+
£ : 285,550,000/ 70 ) M1 Z RIFITREIER - R
TENF+ZA=+—0  ARRREERIHME
A 2 58 £170,892,0008 T ( Z T E L4 ¢
99,256,000/ 7T) °
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27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Authorised: SETERRA
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares 10,000,000,000/%
of HK$0.10 each EFREE.10E T2 i@k 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
1,637,892,384 ordinary shares 1,637,892,384%
of HK$0.10 each FREEC.N10B T2 F ik 163,789 163,789

BHE_ZTZEN\F+_A=+—RBR-_ZEZ
+tFE+-A=+—BIWMEHM  AQA

There were no movements in the share capital of the Company
during both years ended 31 December 2008 and 31 December

2007. PR A ] E -
28. RESERVES 28. f#fE
Group
58
Capital ~ Fair value Share-based
Share redemption adjustment  payment Translation Merger legal  Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  Goodwill reserve  reserves profits Total
HRH
RiBE  ATEE  AEH:
RHEE B REER  FERE  ENRE #%  AUEE  iRRE  REEA Eh
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn TEn T Thn TEn TEn T Thn Tihn TiEn
(Note (a)) (Note (b))~ (Note ()~ (Note (d))
(M) (M) (o) (W)
At 1 January 2007 RZZELE-A-A 24,505 2,882 (4,000) - 14,654 (36,782) 3 15,950 799,988 817,519
Curenqy translation ~ EXEE
differences - - - - 71373 - - - - 71373
Profit appropriations ~~ ZFIAE - - - - - - - 2147 (2,147) -
Share of an associated (i —FE2
company's reserve NAER - - - - 122 - - 5 (5) 12
Share-based payment  WARFEERZ
expenses AR - - - 11,792 - - - - - 11,792
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - - - - 384383 384,383
Dividends BRE - - - - - - - - (81,894) (81,894)
At31 December 2007 RZFTHETZAZT-B 24,505 288 (4,000 11,792 92,149 (36782 n 18,102 1100325 1209295
Currency translation ~ EXZE
differences - - - - 69,730 - - - - 69,730
Profit appropriations B2 - - - - - - - 19,562 (19,562) -
Realisation upon LE-FHEATEE - - - - (3,488) - - - - (3,488)
disposal of a subsidiary
Transferred to profit ~ WHESHEEHER
and loss account ENBRR
upon impairment of
an avaiable-for-sale
financial asset - - 4,000 - - - - - - 4,000
Share of an associated  FEfE—RBE
company's reserve  AFEE - - - - 180 - - 5 (5) 180
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - - - - 492920 492,920
Dividends RE - - - - - - - - (81,894) (81,894)
Write-back of unclaimed BRI %
dividends RE - - - - - - - - 1 1
At 31 December 2008 R=FENE+ZA=+-H 24505 2,882 - 1792 1585711 (36782 m 37669 1491785 1,690,744
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Company
ARNH
Share-
Capital based
Share redemption Contributed payment Retained
premium reserve surplus reserve profits Total
MR
R RERZ
RVEE WERE AARHK  FUERE  REER @5t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THBT FHBT FET FET FET FET
(Note (a))  (Note (e))
(k@)  (MsEe)
At 1 January 2007 RZEZ+F-A—H 24,505 2,882 152,891 - 12,330 192,608
Profit for the year FREH - - - - 84,285 84,285
Dividends R - - - - (81,894)  (81,894)
Share-based payment expenses PRI BE 2 FIER S - - - 11,792 - 11,792
At 31 December 2007 RZZTLEFZA=+—H 24,505 2,882 152,891 11,792 14,721 206,791
Profit for the year FREF - - - - 70,338 70,338
Dividends 1953 - - - - (81,894)  (81,894)
Write-back of unclaimed BERER
dividends RE - - - - 1 1
At 31 December 2008 RZZBENF+ZA=+—H 24,505 2,882 152,891 11,792 3,166 195,236
Notes: B E
(a)  Capital redemption reserve (a) EAFEDIEE

The capital redemption reserve represents the nominal amount of shares

repurchased by the Company in 1999.

Goodwill

The amount represents goodwill on acquisitions occurred prior to 1 January
2001 that was taken to reserves as a deduction from equity. The goodwill
will not be recognised in the profit and loss account when all or part of
the business to which the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-

generating unit to which the goodwill relates is impaired.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the subsidiaries at the date on
which they were acquired by the Company and the nominal amount of the
share capital issued by the Company as consideration for the acquisition

pursuant to the corporate reorganisation in 1995.

SHOEBOXE@
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28. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(d)  Legal reserves

Legal reserves comprising general reserve fund of HK$29,750,000 (2007:
HK$10,600,000) and enterprise expansion fund of HK$7,919,000 (2007:
HK$7,502,000) are required to be set up pursuant to the statutory laws
of China for the Company’s subsidiaries and an associated company
established in China. The general reserve fund can only be used to make
up losses incurred, increase registered capital or used for collective welfare
of employees. The enterprise expansion fund can only be used to increase
the registered capital.

(e)  Contributed surplus
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between
the aggregate net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company
under the corporate reorganisation in 1995 and the nominal amount of
the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition.

() Distributable reserves

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its equity holders of
the Company comprise share premium, contributed surplus, share-based
payment reserve and retained profits. Under the Companies Law (as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, share premium of the
Company is available for paying distributions or dividends to equity holders
subject to the provisions of its Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distribution or payment of dividend, the Company
is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, dividends shall be
payable out of the profits or other reserves, including the share premium
account, of the Company.

29. DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method using the applicable tax rates.

The movement in the net deferred tax assets is as follows:

28. f#E(E)
BHE : ()

(d)

ETE

& TE A B $529,750,00008 TT( = B T 4 4 ¢
10,600,000/ 7T ) 2 — M EE S 57,919,000/ 7T
(ZZTTHF:7502,0008T) 20 EMEES
B BUERIRE AR R B 2 B A R R
EARERLZETHEES - —REBESETH
RBEHEEELZER  ENFMEAXANEE S

P2

BEMNASZ  CEXARESETANENZME
o
VN

KRR ZHABRBEARTDNRE-NNAEFRAE
AUWBBHE AR EEFELREARTRKEM
BITZRMEEMRE 2 ZE -

D IR

ARBAHRD IR T AR AT E A FBERIER
D (E - AR - ARMD RBER 2 FBEFERR
BAEN - REFAEHSARE(RERARER) &
AR BEE R BERERTE AN D IR
B AR ARHEBERARZEXAMRR - ME
FEfEH DRSO E IR - ARRLAERRAEE
BB EENMER - REARF 2 ARMAKE
RAR - REANARRZ BN HEMFER(RIE
Pefn @ BER) ST -

29. EFEHIR
BREFRBERABEERE K ERIEAREE
DR

BERIAEESFEZZBMT:

Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EENFE ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
At 1 January n—A—H 36,357 35,123
(Charged)/credited to profit (Hkrg) FtAB=ER
and loss account (Note 10) (B¥5E10) (6,141) 1,234
At 31 December Rt+=—HA=+—H 30,216 36,357
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29. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED) 29. EEH IR (E)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss to be carried RATIGEE T 48 2 BIA B IR RERIELEMEH &
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit 2= EENEBERIEE S e B 12 2 JERT
through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December 2008, BNERER/RR - R_ZENEF+_A=+—
the Group has unrecognised tax losses of HK$65,080,000 (2007: H - RNEBEBBRRFI0FIH 2 RERPIIE
HK$68,453,000) which will expire within the next ten years to be [£51865,080,000/% ;T ( = F T+ 4F : 68,453,000
carried forward against future taxable income. BT AR R R 2 JEAR B AR 8 -
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets (prior to FR - REEHBEEBEREE (KRB aAE
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during 1% 7 SERIKSERT) 2 B8 T -

the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities Group
EEHERE AEE
Accelerated tax depreciation
INEBLIETE
2008 2007
—BB\F —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET TETT
At 1 January m—HR—H 1,115 930
Charged to profit and loss account MR BEEER 440 185
At 31 December W+-—A=+—H 1,555 1,115
Group
%58
Decelerated Deferred
Deferred tax assets Provisions depreciation tax expenses Tax losses Total
EEsagE it RERENE EERR HEEE Eh

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
SRRNE CTTLF CRRNE CERLE CERNE CTILF ZRRNFE CTRLE SR\ CTTHR
HKS'000  HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HK$'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000

TR TAr  fEn  TEr  FEx  TEr  FEn AL FEm AL

At 1 January R—A-A 23,976 25,705 11,920 1375 4 1,65 835 1317 37412 36,053
Creditedicharged) to 3T\ (1B E)

profit and loss account ~ B&E 3,145 (1,729) (8,261) 4,545 (118) (915) (467) (482) (5,701) 1419
At 31 December W=h=t-H 27,121 23976 3,659 11,920 623 M 368 835 31,1 37472
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30. BEFREERE
ENEFEECAERRAEAERECERRESF
10% 2 B EHER  ZURRDEL2ELREE
ZIEFHESRAEE °

30. LICENSE FEES PAYABLE
License fees payable was recognised based on a discount rate of
10% per annum at the date of inception of the obligation, which
was determined by reference to the Group’s weighted average
cost of capital.

RZZEENF+_A=+—8  FTESHFERE
REBEREERETZEARNEN - BEMR
HETAEZREEEREGHATEEMES -
ERE=ZERNFEREREENFLN 2 &R
777,311,000/ 7T 527,843,000/ 7T °

As at 31 December 2008, all license fees were payable after twelve
months from the balance sheet date and the carrying value of the
license fees payable approximated its estimated fair value. The
balances payable in the third to fifth year and the sixth to eighth
year were HK$7,311,000 and HK$7,843,000 respectively.

31. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 31. mEHRERERXR
Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated from KERBFREEEE 2R 2 HER
operations
2008 2007
—EENE —ETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET R
Operating profit LB EF 678,980 541,133
Interest income FLEHA (2,715) (4,413)
Amortisation BiE 2,424 1,633
Depreciation e 114,880 94,952
Fair value gain on derivative PTEESMIAZAT
financial instruments EEWRZ - (2,097)
Impairment loss on an AHESREE
available-for-sale financial asset BEREE 4,000 -
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RKMBARZEIE 3,417 -
Loss on disposal of land use rights HE T AR BE 20 -
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBRTEEZEE 20,235 7,835
Share-based payment expenses VAR AD AR 2 SRR X - 11,792
Operating profit before working HEEPHATZ
capital changes gl 821,311 650,835
Increase in inventories FEEM (320,510) (307,597)
Increase in trade receivables, other B S MR - H A EUERER
receivables, deposits and prepayments e M ITES FRIALE I (161,161) (194,563)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables, 2 S ERIRI - HADERERR
other payables and accrued charges rEsTERCRL),/#Em (35,166) 175,492
Cash generated from operations LEEECRS 304,474 324,167
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32. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 31 August 2008, the Group disposed a subsidiary, Jiwei Shoe
Industrial Co. Ltd. (“Jiwei”), to an independent third party at a
consideration of HK$37,176,000. The net assets of Jiwei at the
date of disposal were as follows:

32. HE—RMEBALAF
RZZENFNA=ZFT—8 FEELENE
AR LEBEXERAR(EEDT—
WM E=) 0 REA37,176,0008 T - £FERN
HEERZEEFENAT

HK$'000
FHET
Net assets disposed of: FrHE&EEFE :
Land use rights s A 1,199
Fixed assets BEEE 35,012
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR LIRS 862
Other assets HEmEE 14,825
Other liabilities EMEE (7,817)
44,081
Exchange gain realised B ZIRE 5 e (3,488)
40,593
Loss on disposal HE 1S EE (3,417)
Total consideration BRE 37,176
Satisfied by: YA
Cash "e 25,911
Consideration receivable (included in other receivables) (Note (a)) FEUAR(E (G AH A EUWEER)  (Fisk@)) 11,265
37,176
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEMEERSMAFHE
Cash consideration received BUIR R (E 25,911
Bank balances and cash disposed BHERITESR LIRS (862)
25,049
Notes: 3T -

(@)  The consideration receivable is expected to be settled within twelve months
from the balance sheet date.

(b)  During the year, Jiwei contributed a net loss of HK$8,345,000 to the
Group.

SHOEBOXE@

(a) FERAREEMNEERRESF T _EANEE -

(b) FA - EEHRNEMANRS,345,0008 THIEFE -
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33. COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments for purchase of land use rights and

fixed assets

33. &
() BEIHFARRECEEZEXEE

Group
TEE
2008 2007
—EENE —TTiF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Authorised but not contracted EEERRETL 25,916 52,846
Contracted but not provided for EETHRREE 34,615 29,640
60,531 82,486

(b) Commitments under operating leases
As at 31 December 2008, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments in respect of various production
plants and facilities, warehouses, offices and distribution

(b) REHEERE
R-FBZNF+-_A=1+—8 AKEH
SHEERMENRE BB - HRAERSD
HIE 2 MR BEH S AR E 2 ARSI K

outlets under non-cancellable operating leases as follows: mEm

Group

rEE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Not later than one year —FR 514,936 306,052

Later than one year and —FERERFNA

not later than five years 588,062 653,616
Later than five years hEFE 8,109 7,284
1,111,107 966,952

Payment obligations in respect of operating leases on properties
with rentals vary with gross revenues are not included as future
minimum lease payments.

The Company did not have any material commitments as at 31
December 2008 (2007: nil).

94 - _ SHOEBOXHE

HEeRRABEMERMELEHEL
ERNEE - AR ARKREN HAER
A o

RZZZENF+ZA=+T—H KAFWET
MEREAE(ZTELF 1 F) -




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
AR B B L

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in

EXREEKRERAERA2A

these accounts, the Group entered into the following related party BIN

transactions during the year:

(a) Transactions and balances with related companies (a)

Transactions

Daphne International Holdings Limited
3R Annual Report 2008

34. MR 5 RAEER
BT UERA R MES
 REERFNBET TSRS

T E 2R 5 RAEHR

BERBAR RS REH

Balances at year end

x5 FREAZER
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENFE —ETTLF ZBENF —TTtF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET FAT FE T FAT
Purchases from: DRNZIE=SE>3i -
An associated company =N 495 899 157 311
Investee companies WIRE RN 39,855 36,143 5,465 8,421

Purchases of shoe materials and footwear from the associated

company, Dayong, and investee companies, Sun Home, Jingxing

and Daen, were conducted in the normal course of the Group’s

AR ERRAKRARIRE QR HE &
ERRBBEERYHRERER IR D
TJE’\‘ZIS%I BREEBEETET - XBIHF

business. The terms of transactions were determined and TSR EEER G ERER - M7
agreed between the Group and the counter parties and all ﬁﬁéﬁﬁ ERTMEIR X P IR AT o
balances due were repayable according to trade terms.
(b) Key management personnel compensation (b) EEEEAEZHM
2008 2007
—EENEF —ETEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAETT
Salaries and bonuses e RIEL 23,203 8,747
Defined contribution pension costs  EREMHFURIRE KA 246 119
Share-based payment expenses LARRAD BT 2 SRR X - 6,507
23,449 15,373

SHOEBOXE@
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A FMBHME

For the years ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+—-HLEE

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—ZEN\F —_TTLF —TTRF _TTHF —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Results EF FHT FAIT FAT FAET T
Turnover St 5,289,297 3,853,580 3,093,086 2,622,677 1,788,539
Gross profit EH 2,787,386 1,829,779 1,395,212 1,143,943 684,529
Operating profit AT 678,980 541,133 400,606 323,404 236,895
Profit before taxation B A & 7 666,267 530,018 391,617 319,216 233,997
Profit for the year attributable to: LA N& A ERFRZEF) : 497,177 388,720 295,104 256,056 180,997
Equity holders of the Company RATIERFFEA 492,920 384,383 291,566 254,593 176,220
Minority interests LEH R RS 4,257 4,337 3,538 1,463 4,777
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) SREARZEF] (L) 30.09 23.47 17.80 15.72 11.33
Dividend per share (HK cents) RIS GBI 5.5 5.0 4.5 5.0 3.5

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8H

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EEN\F —TTLF ZTTRF _TTHF —TTHF
HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Assets and liabilities EERERE FET T T T FHET
Total assets BEE 2,962,361 2,361,901 1,718,838 1,434,624 1,077,219
Total liabilities NN 1,071,063 954,719 705,626 611,008 494,660
Total equity attributable to: AT &SI EER 1,891,298 1,407,182 1,013,212 823,616 582,559
Equity holders of the Company RAREHFEAA 1,854,533 1,373,084 981,308 744,207 533,720
Minority interests DER R E R 36,765 34,098 31,904 79,409 48,839
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